[Papel Membretado del Custodio]

CARTA DE ACEPTACION DEL CUSTODIO PARA PARTICIPAR EN LA OFERTA
PUBLICA DE ADQUISICION Y SUSCRIPCION RECIPROCA QUE REALIZA
SEMPRA ENERGY (en adelante “Sempra Energy” o el “Oferente”)

Casa de Bolsa BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de
C.V., Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer
Direccion: Paseo de la Reforma 510, Piso 18,
Col Juérez, 06600, Ciudad de México,
México.

A la atencion de: Mary Carmen Espinosa Osorio y Francisco Marquez Granillo

Correo rfi_equity.group@bbva.com, mary.espinosa@bbva.com y
electrénico: franciscojavier.marquez.grani@bbva.com
Teléfonos: (55) 5621 9662 y/o (55) 5621 0870

Estimados sefiores:

Hacemos referencia a la oferta publica de adquisicion y suscripcién reciproca (la “Oferta de
Intercambio”) de (i) hasta 433,242,720 (cuatrocientas treinta y tres millones doscientas cuarenta
y dos mil setecientas veinte) acciones ordinarias, nominativas, serie Gnica, sin expresion de valor
nominal de INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA NOVA, S.A.B. DE C.V. (“IEnova” o la
“Emisora”) con clave de pizarra IENOVA que equivalen al 29.8% (veintinueve punto ocho por
ciento) del total de las acciones en circulacién de la Emisora, (las “Acciones Publicas de la
Emisora” o las “Acciones Pdblicas de IENOVA?”), por (ii) acciones comunes de Sempra Energy
(las *“Acciones de Intercambio”), que realiza el Oferente, la cual ha sido autorizada por la
Comision Nacional Bancaria y de Valores mediante oficio nimero 153/10026434/2021.

Por medio de la presente y en nombre y por cuenta de los accionistas de la Emisora que mantienen
una cuenta de intermediacion con el suscrito o que de otro modo entregaron sus titulos de
acciones fisicos al suscrito para participar en la Oferta de Intercambio, acreditando dichos titulos
de acciones en una cuenta de intermediacion con el suscrito (conjuntamente, los “Accionistas de
IEnova”), aceptamos todos y cada uno de los términos y condiciones de la Oferta de Intercambio,
conforme a lo establecido en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo de fecha 26 de abril de 2021 (el
“Prospecto y Folleto Informativo”) y la declaracion de registro en la Forma S-4 (Expediente No.
333-252030) presentado por Sempra Energy con la Comision de Valores de los EE.UU.A.
(Securities and Exchange Commission, “SEC”) y el prospecto incluido en la misma de fecha 26
de abril de 2021 (la “Declaracién de Registro”):

Numero de Acciones Publicas de | [Incluir acciones de IENOVA en nimero]
IEnova que aceptan la Oferta 'y
adquirir Acciones de Intercambio
de Sempra Energy:

[Incluir acciones de IENOVA en letra]




De conformidad con lo requerido en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo, por medio de la presente
en representacion de nuestros clientes Accionistas de IEnova, hacemos constar que (i) hemos
recibido instrucciones de éstos en virtud de las cuales ha quedado expresa la aceptacion de dichos
clientes de todos y cada uno de los términos y condiciones de la Oferta de Intercambio
establecidos en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracién de Registro; (ii) el
Prospecto y Folleto Informativo se ha encontrado disponible en Internet en la direccién de la
Bolsa Mexicana de Valores, S.A.B. de C.V. (“BMV”) desde el dia 1 de diciembre de 2020 (segun
ha sido actualizado de tiempo en tiempo); v (iii) la Declaracion de Registro ha estado disponible
en Internet en la direccion de la SEC desde el 12 de enero de 2021 (segun ha sido actualizada de
tiempo en tiempo).

Asimismo, certificamos que (i) la totalidad de los Accionistas de IEnova respecto de los cuales
se presenta esta Carta de Aceptacion: (y) tienen el caracter de legitimos titulares de las Acciones
Publicas de IEnova referidas en la presente, de conformidad con nuestros registros y listados
internos a la fecha de la presente, y (z) cuentan con la capacidad juridica para disponer de las
mismas en los términos de la Oferta de Intercambio; y (ii) las Acciones Publicas de IEnova de
las que son titulares dichos Accionistas de IEnova y que han entregado, conforme a la Oferta de
Intercambio y lo establecido en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de
Registro, se encuentran libres de todos y cualesquiera gravdmenes o cualesquier otras
limitaciones de dominio.

Asimismo, se confirma mediante la presente que, a efecto de que las Acciones Publicas de IEnova
referidas en la presente sean adquiridas por el Oferente en la Oferta de Intercambio, el suscrito
realizara todas las medidas necesarias para traspasar dichas Acciones Publicas de IEnova libres
de pago a la cuenta de Casa de Bolsa BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V., Grupo Financiero BBVA
Bancomer (el “Intermediario”) numero 01-024-2907 (la “Cuenta Concentradora”) que el
Intermediario mantiene en la S.D. Indeval Institucion para el Deposito de Valores, S.A. de C.V.
(“Indeval”) en los términos establecidos en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion
de Registro, a méas tardar a las 2:00 p.m., hora de la Ciudad de México (3:00 p.m., hora de la
ciudad de Nueva York) el 24 de mayo de 2021, que es la fecha de vencimiento de la Oferta de
Intercambio. El Intermediario Unicamente recibira traspasos de Acciones Publicas de IEnova a
través de Indeval y no recibira ni aceptara cualesquiera titulos de acciones fisicos de la Emisora
que el suscrito presente al Intermediario para participar en la Oferta de Intercambio.

Asimismo, por medio de la presente Carta de Aceptacion y a nombre de los Accionistas de
IEnova, aceptamos que:

l. Las Acciones Publicas de la Emisora que sean traspasadas a la Cuenta Concentradora
después de las 2:00 p.m., hora de la Ciudad de México (3:00 p.m., hora de la ciudad de
Nueva York) el 24 de mayo de 2021, que es la fecha de vencimiento de la Oferta de
Intercambio (a menos que la Oferta de Intercambio se prorrogue segun se describe en el
Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de Registro), no seran aceptadas y no
participaran en la Oferta de Intercambio, por lo que seran devueltas a los Accionistas de
IEnova respectivos, salvo que de otro modo lo dispense el Oferente segun se describe mas
adelante y en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de Registro.



Las Acciones Publicas de la Emisora que participen del proceso de asignacion de la Oferta
de Intercambio seran liquidadas en términos de lo dispuesto en la Seccion “1.28
Procedimiento de Liquidacion de la Oferta” de la seccion “1. Caracteristicas de la Oferta”
del Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y bajo el titulo “The Exchange Offer — Exchange Offer
Closing Procedure” en la Declaracion de Registro.

El suscrito recibira el 28 de mayo de 2021, que constituye la fecha de liquidacion para la
Oferta de Intercambio (salvo que la Oferta de Intercambio se prorrogue segun se describe
en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de Registro), un nimero de
Acciones de Intercambio de Sempra Energy que se calculard por el Intermediario: (i)
aplicando el Factor de Intercambio descrito en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la
Declaracion de Registro por cada 1 (una) Accién Publica de IEnova que sea objeto de la
presente Carta de Aceptacion; en el entendido que, segun se establece en el Prospecto y
Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de Registro, el Intermediario no entregara
fracciones de Acciones de Intercambio de Sempra Energy al suscrito; y (ii) redondeando
cualquier fraccion de Acciones de Intercambio de Sempra Energy hacia el nimero entero
inmediato inferior y entregando efectivo en sustitucion de cualquier dicha fraccion de
acciones, segun se establece en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de
Registro.

En caso de que el nimero de las Acciones de Intercambio a ser distribuidas al suscrito no
corresponda a un numero entero, el Intermediario debera adjudicar al suscrito, en
sustitucion de las fracciones de Acciones de Intercambio que de otro modo le hubieren
correspondido, un monto en efectivo en Doélares (moneda de curso legal de los Estados
Unidos de América) igual al producto que se obtenga al multiplicar (i) las fracciones de las
Acciones de Intercambio de Sempra Energy que corresponderia distribuir al suscrito, por
(ii) el promedio de los precios de cierre por accion de las acciones comunes de Sempra
Energy en el New York Stock Exchange (segln sea reportado por Bloomberg L.P.) en cada
uno de los 10 (diez) Dias de Cotizacion (segun dicho término se define en el Prospecto y
Folleto Informativo, y el término “Trading Days” se define en la Declaracion de Registro)
inmediatos anteriores a la fecha en que Sempra Energy deposite los recursos con el
Intermediario, mediante transferencia electronica de fondos en Dolares de los EE.UU.A, a
la cuenta bancaria del suscrito sefialada en el Anexo Unico de la presente Carta de
Aceptacion, en el entendido, que el suscrito seré responsable de la entrega de forma integra
y puntual a los Accionistas de IEnova que sean sus clientes tanto de las Acciones de
Intercambio como de la cantidad en efectivo que, en su caso, les correspondan, sin
responsabilidad alguna para Sempra Energy ni para el Intermediario.

Conforme a lo previsto en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de
Registro, el Oferente tiene el derecho de rechazar cualquier Carta de Aceptacion,
instruccion o entrega, que no se realice en forma debida o que por cualquier razén sea
invalida, o podréa rehusarse a aceptar, a través del Intermediario, la Carta de Aceptacion o
la entrega de las Acciones Publicas de IEnova que, en su opinién o la de sus abogados, sea
ilegal o incumpla con los requisitos sefialados por el Oferente, y también tiene el derecho,
a su entera discrecion, de dispensar cualesquiera irregularidades. Ademas, el Oferente no
aceptara para intercambio ni intercambiara cualesquiera Acciones Publicas de la Emisora



validamente presentadas, y que no se hayan retirado de, la Oferta de Intercambio, a menos
que cada una de las Condiciones de la Oferta, segun dicho término se define y describe en
el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion de Registro (en este caso definido
como “Offer Conditions”), sean satisfechas o dispensadas por Sempra Energy a su entera
discrecion previo al vencimiento de la Oferta de Intercambio.

Finalmente, conforme a lo establecido en el Prospecto y Folleto Informativo y en la Declaracion
de Registro, el suscrito en este acto declara y certifica, que todas las declaraciones contenidas en
el ultimo parrafo de la Seccién “Il. La Oferta — Caracteristicas de la Oferta — 1.25 — Mecénica
para Participar en la Oferta” del Prospecto y Folleto Informativo, y bajo el titulo “The Exchange
Offer — Tender Participation Procedure” de la Declaracion de Registro, son ciertas y correctas a
la fecha de la presente.

Para que asi conste, suscribimos al calce esta carta el dia [+] de [] de 2021.

Nombre del Custodio:

Nombre del Apoderado:

Firma del Apoderado:

El suscrito certifica, en nombre del Custodio (segun dicho término se define en el Prospecto y
Folleto Informativo, y el término “Custodian” se define en la Declaracion de Registro) que
representa, que la informacion referente a sus clientes o0 a su posicion propia es cierta, que conoce
y acepta los términos de la Oferta de Intercambio, y que cuenta con las facultades legales
otorgadas por el Custodio para representarlo, aceptar la Oferta de Intercambio y suscribir y
aceptar los términos de esta Carta de Aceptacion.

En este acto me comprometo a indemnizar y sacar en paz y a salvo a Casa de Bolsa BBVA
Bancomer, S.A. de C.V., Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer y a Sempra Energy de cualquier
obligacion y responsabilidad en contra de Casa de Bolsa BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V., Grupo
Financiero BBVA Bancomer o Sempra Energy, respectivamente, en virtud de cualquiera de los
actos que realice [incluir nombre del Custodio] en relacion con la Oferta de Intercambio y la
presente Carta de Aceptacion, y me obligo a reembolsar dentro de los cinco (5) dias posteriores
a que le sea exigido por el indemnizado correspondiente cualquier gasto (incluyendo gastos
razonables de abogados) en que haya incurrido en relacién con cualquier procedimiento que se
inicie en su contra en relacion con la Oferta de Intercambio y la presente Carta de Aceptacion.



Anexo Unico de la Carta de Aceptacion

Informacién del Custodio

Nombre completo del Custodio: | [*]

Cuenta de origen (cuenta en [*]
Indeval de donde se enviaran las
Acciones Publicas de IEnova
que aceptan la Oferta de
Intercambio al Intermediario):

Cuenta de destino (cuenta en []
Indeval donde se depositaran las
Acciones de Intercambio de
Sempra Energy resultado de la
participacion a la liquidacion de
la Oferta de Intercambio):

Datos de la cuenta bancaria del Banco: [*]
Custodio en Dolares de los Domicilio [*]
EE.UU.A. (para el pago en del Banco

efectivo en sustitucion de Cuenta: [-]
fracciones de Acciones de QV?I'IA\FT H
Intercambio): Beneficiario: [*]

Nombre y puesto de la persona a | [*]

contactar:

Direccion: []
Teléfono: []
Email: [*]

Informacidn sobre la persona responsable de la informacion contenida en esta Carta de
Aceptacion

Nombre del Apoderado:

Puesto del Apoderado:




Firma:

Fecha:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Sempra Energy:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sempra Energy and subsidiaries (“Sempra Energy”) as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, the related notes, and the schedule listed in
Item 15 (collectively referred to as the “financial statcments”). In our opinion, the financial statcments present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Sempra Energy as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and

its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), Sempra Energy’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, and our report dated February 25, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on Sempra Energy’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion .

These financial statements are the responsibility of Semipra Energy’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
Sempra Energy’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to Sempra Energy in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenits are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are
material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate,

Insurance Receivable and Legal Contingencies Related to Aliso Canyon Gas Leak - Refer to Note 16 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description
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Aliso Canyon natural gas storage facility gas leak. Sempra Energy has determined that the insurance receivable is probable of

1, 2020 related to certain costs aiising fioim the
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recovery based on the nature of the insurance claims, the costs incurred, and Hleemmg PR ab !e.mmncc
policies.

Additionally, Sempra Energy is named in various lawsuits related to the gas leak and the liabilities could be material. Sempra
Energy’s accrual for civil litigation matters associated with the gas leak, inclusive of estimated le gal costs, is included within its
$451 million Reserve for Aliso Canyon Costs as of December 3 1, 2020.

We identified the recoverability of the insurance receivable as a critical audit matter due to the management judgments required in
assessing if, and to what degree, the coverage provided by applicable insurance policies would cover the types of costs included
in the insurance claims submitted. Also, we identified the contingency accrual related to the civil litigation as a critical audit
matter due to the management judgments required in assessing the probability and reasonable estimation of the potential liability
related to the civil litigation. Auditing the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable and the contingency accrual related
to the civil litigation required subjective auditor judgment and extensive audii effori.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable for the costs related to the Aliso Canyon
natural gas storage facility gas leak included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over the costs included in the related insurance receivable and the
evaluation of the recoverability of this insurance receivable.

» With the assistance of an insurance specialist, we evaluated management’s judgments related to the determination of the
recoverability of the insurance receivable by:

> Evaluating the coverage provided by applicable insurance policics and evaluating the potential coverage available under such
policies based on the nature of the underlying costs.

° Evaluating the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable by obtaining correspondence between Sempra Energy and
the applicable insurers.

o Bvaluatine the nrnhc\hﬂ‘f} of recovery of the inenra 1we receivable thra rnh inguiries with managemen nt and with external ]pgal
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counsel of Sempra Energy and we evaluated whether the information prov1ded was consistent with our other procedures,

> Searching external sources for and considering any contradictory evidence to Sempra Energy’s accounting assessment of
probability of recoverability of the insurance receivable.

Our audit procedures related to civil litigation matters included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over (1) Sempra Energy’s determination of whether a loss was
nmhahlP and masonahlv estimable and (2) the financial statement disclosures related to the gas leak.

* We evaluated management’s judgments related to (1) whether a loss was probable and reasonably estimable and (2) whether
additional losses are reasonably possible by inquiring of management and legal counsel of Sempra Energy regarding the
amounts of probable and reasonably estimable losses.

* We read a settlement offer and external information for any evidence that might contradict management’s assertions.

* We read legal letters from external and internal legal counsel of Sempra Energy regarding information from settlement
discussions and we evaluated whether the information therein was consistent with the information obtained in our procedures.

= We evaluated whether Sempra Energy’s disclosures were appropriate and consistent with the information obtained in our
procedures.

Regulatory Accounting - Impact of Rate Regulation on the Financial Statements - Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description
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“Commissions™) that have jurisdiction with respect to the rates of electric and gas transmission and distribution companies in
those jurisdictions. Management has determined it meets the requirements under U.S. GAAP to prepare its financial statements

applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation. Accounting for the economics of rte
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regulation impacts multiple financial statement line items and disclosures, such as property, plant and equipment; regulatory
assets and liabilities; operating revenues; operation and maintenance expense; depreciation expense; and taxes.

We identified the impact of rate regulation as a critical audit matter due to the significant judgments made by management to
support its assertions about impacted account balances and disclosures and the high degree of subjectivity involved in assessing
the impact of future regulatory orders on the financial statements. Management’s Jjudgments include assessing the likelihood of
(1) the recovery in future rates of incurred costs and (2) potential refunds to customers. Auditing these judgments required
specialized knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process due to its inherent complexities.
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How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit @ 5 :
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Our audit procedures related to the application of specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based Tate fe gulai ion and the

uncertainty of future decisions by the Commissions included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the evaluation of the likelihood of (1) the recovery in future rates of
costs deferred as regulatory assets, and (2) a refund or a future reduction in rates that should be reported as regulatory liabilities.
We tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the initial recognition of amounts as regulatory assets or liabilities
and the monitoring and evaluation of regulatory developments that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs in future rates
or of a fuiure reduction in rates.

* We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commissions for Sempra Energy and other publicly available information to
assess the likelihood of recovery in future rates or of a future reduction in rates based on precedents of the Commissions’
treatment of similar costs under similar circumstances. We evaluated the external information and compared to management’s
recorded regulatory asset and liability balances for completeness.

* We evaluated Sempra Energy’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and
regulatory developments,

/s DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Diego, California
February 25, 2021

We have served as Sempra Energy’s auditor since 1935.
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1o the Shareholder and Board of Directors of San Diego Gas & Electric ‘ompany: ‘

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of San Diego Gas & Electric Company (“SDG&E™) as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as
the “financial statements™). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all matetial respects, the financial position of
SDG&E as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("U.S. GAAP").

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), SDG&E’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Jnternal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and
our report dated February 25, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on SDG&E’s internal control over financial reporting,.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of SDG&E’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
SDG&E’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to SDG&E in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are
material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Regulatory Accounting - Impact of Rate Regulation on the Financial Statements - Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

SDG&E is subject to rate regulation by regulators and commissions in various jurisdictions (collectively, the “Commissions™) that
have jurisdiction with respect to the rates of electric and gas transmission and distribution companies in those jurisdictions.
Management has determined it meets the requirements under U.S. GAAP to prepare its financial statements applying the
specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation, Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts
multiple financial statement line items and disclosures, such as property, plant and equipment; regulatory assets and liabilities;
operating revenues; operation and maintenance expense; depreciation expense; and taxes.
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We identified the impact of rate regulation as a ctitical audit matter due to the significant judgments made by management to
support its assertions about impacted account balances and disclosures and the high degree of subjectivity involved in assessing
the impact of future regulatory orders on the financial statements. Management’s Judgments include assessing the likelihood of
(1) the recovery in future rates of incurred costs and (2) potential refunds to customers. Auditing these judgments required
speciaiized knowledge of accounting for rate reguiation and the rate setting process due (o its inherent compiexities.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the application of specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation and the
uncertainty of future decisions by the Commissions included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the evaluation of the likelihood of (1) the recovety in future rates of
costs deferred as regulatory assets, and (2) a refund or a future reduction in rates that should be reported as regulatory liabilities.
We tested the effectivencss of management’s controls over the initial recognition of amounts as regulatory assets or liabilities
and the monitoring and evaluation of regulatory developments that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs in future rates
or of a future reduciion in raies,

* We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commissions for SDG&E and other publicly available information to assess
the likelihood of recovery in future rates or of a future reduction in rates based on precedents of the Commissions’ treatment of
similar costs under similar circumstances. We evaluated the external information and compared to management’s recorded
regulatory asset and liability balances for completeness.

* We evaluated SDG&E’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and regulatory

developments, v
g t'..nﬂ'

.o r‘@” ,.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP L—i

San Diego, California
February 25, 2021

We have served as SDG&E’s auditor since 1935.
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Southern California Gas Company:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Southern California Gas Company (“SoCalGas™) as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, the related statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
cach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements™). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SoCalGas as
of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP™).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
("PCAOB”), SoCalGas’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, and our report dated February 25, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on SoCalGas’ internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of SoCalGas’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
SoCalGas’ financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to SoCalGas in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnaﬁcial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated ot required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that arc
material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Insurance Receivable and Legal Contingencies Related to Aliso Canyon Gas Leak - Refer to Note 16 of the Notes
to Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

SoCalGas has an insurance receivable of $445 million as of December 31, 2020 related to certain costs arising from the Aliso
Canyon natural gas storage facility gas leak. SoCalGas has determined that the insurance receivable is probable of recovery based
on the nature of the insurance claims, the costs incurred, and the coverage provided by applicable insurance policies.

Additionally, SoCalGas is named in various lawsuits related to the gas leak and the liabilities could be material. SoCalGas’
accrual for civil litigation matters associated with the gas leak, inclusive of estimated legal costs, is included within its $451
million Reserve for Aliso Canyon Costs as of December 31, 2020.
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We identified the recoverability of the insurance receivable as a critical audit matter duemﬂmmamgnmem-mdgmcntmequmed in
assessing if, and to what degree, the coverage provided by applicable insurance policies would cover the types of costs included
in the insurance claims submitted. Also, we identified the contingency accrual related to the civil litigation as a critical audit
matter due to the management judgments required in assessing the probability and reasonable estimation of the potential liability
relaied to the civil litigation. Auditing the probability of recovery of the insurance receivabic and the coniingency accrual reiated
to the civil litigation required subjective auditor judgment and extensive audit effort.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures related to the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable for the costs related to the Aliso Canyon
natural gas storage facility gas leak included the following, among others:
* We tested the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over the costs included in the related insurance receivable and the
evaluation of the recoverability of this insurance receivable.
* With the assistance of an insurance specialist, we evaluated management’s Jjudgments related to the determination of the
recoverability of the insurance receivable by:
> Evaluating the coverage provided by applicable insurance policies and evaluating the potential coverage available under such
policies based on the nature of the underlying costs.
° Evaluating the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable by obtaining correspondence between SoCalGas and the
applicable insurers,
> Evaluating the probability of recovery of the insurance receivable through inquiries with management and with external legal
counsel of SoCalGas and we evaluated whether the information provided was consistent with our other procedures.
o Searching external sources for and considering any contradictory evidence to SoCalGas’ accounting assessment of
probability of recoverability of the insurance receivable.

Our audit procedures related to civil litigation matters included the following, among others:

= We tested the effectiveness nfmanngpmen'r s internal controls aver (1) SoCalGas’ determination of whether a loss was nrobahle

and reasonably estimable and (2) the financial statement disclosures related to the gas leak,

* We evaluated management’s judgments related to (1) whether a loss was probable and reasonably estimable and (2) whether
additional losses are reasonably possible by inquiting of management and legal counsel of Sempra Energy and SoCalGas
regarding the amounts of probable and reasonably estimable losses.

* We read a settlement offer and external information for any evidence that might contradict management’s assertions.

* We read legal letters from external and internal legal counsel of Sempra Energy regarding information from settlement
discussions and we evaluated whether the information therein was consistent with the information obtained in our procedures.

* We evaluated whether SoCalGas’ disclosures were appropriate and consistent with the information obtained in our procedusres.

Regulatory Accounting - Impact of Rate Regulation on the Financial Statements - Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to
Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

SoCalGas is subject to rate regulation by iegulators and cominissions in various jurisdictions {collectively, the “Commissions™)
that have jurisdiction with respect to the rates of gas transmission and distribution companies in those jurisdictions. Management
has determined it meets the requirements under U.S. GAAP to prepare its financial statements applying the specialized rules to
account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation. Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts multiple financial
statement line items and disclosures, such as propetty, plant and equipment; regulatory assets and liabilities; operating revenues;

operation and maintenance expense; depreciation expense; and taxes.

We identified the impact of rate regulation as a critical audit matter due to the significant judgments made by management to
support its assertions about impacted account balances and disclosures and the high degree of subjectivity involved in assessing
the impact of future regulatory orders on the financial statements. Management’s Jjudgments include assessing the likelihood of
(1) the recovery in future rates of incurred costs and (2) potential refunds to customers. Auditing these judgments required
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specialized knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process due to its inherent complexities.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the application of specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation and the

uncertainty of future decisions by the Commissions inciuded the foliowing, among others:

= W tested the cffectivencss of management’s controls over the evaluation of the likclihood of {1) the recovery in future rates of
costs deferred as regulatory assets, and (2) a refund or a future reduction in rates that should be reported as regulatory liabilities.
We lesied ihe effectiveness of management’s controls over the initial recogmition of amounts as reguluiory asseis or liubiliiies
and the monitoring and evaluation of regulatory developments that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs in future rates
or of a future reduction in rates.

* We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commissions for SoCalGas and other publicly available information to assess
the likelihood of recovery in future rates or of a future reduction in rates based on precedents of the Commissions’ treatment of
similar costs under similar circumstances. We cvaluated the cxternal information and comparcd to managenicnt’s recorded
regulatory asset and liability balances for completeness.

* We evaluated SoCalGas’ disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and re gulatory
developments.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Diego, California
February 25, 2021

We have served as SoCalGas’ auditor since 1937,
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in milllons, except par share amounts; shares in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
REVENUES
Utilities $ 10025 $ 9448 $ 8,539
Energy-related businesses 1,345 1,381 1.563
Total revenues 11,370 10,829 10,102
EXPENSES AND OTHER INCOME
Utilities:
Cost of natural gas (925) (1,139) (1,208)
Cost of electric fuel and purchased power (1.187) (1.188) (1,358)
Eneray-related businesses cost of sales (278) (344) (357)
Operation and maintenance (3,940) (3,466) (3,150)
Aliso Canyon litigation and regulatory matters (307) .- —
Depreciation and amortization (1,666) (1,569) (1,491)
Franchise fees and other taxes (543) (496) (472)
Impairment losses (1 (43) (1,122)
(Loss) gain on sale of assets (3) 63 513
Other (expense) income, net (48) 77 58
Interest income 96 87 85
Interest expense (1,081) (1,077) (886)
Income from continuina oberations before income taxes and eauitv earninas 1,489 1,734 714
Income tax (expense) benefit ' (249) (315) 49
Equity earnings 1,015 580 175
Income from continuina operations. net of income tax - 2,255 1,909 938
Income from discontinued operations, net of income tax 1,850 363 188
Net income 4,105 2,362 1,126
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests (172) (164) (76)
Preferred dividends (168) (142) (125)
Preferred dividends of subsidiary (1) (1) (1)
Earninas attributable to common shares $ 3764 § 2055 % 924
Basic EPS:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 6.61 $ 622 % 2.86
Earnings from discontinued operations $ 632 § 118  § 0.59
Earnings $ 1293  § 740 % 3.45
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 291,077 277,904 268,072
Diluted EPS:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 6.58 % 613 % 2.84
Earnings from discontinued operations $ 630 $ 116  § 0.58
Earnings $ 1288 $ 729 $ 3.42
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 292,252 282,033 269,852

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Dollars in mitlions)

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Sempra Energy shareholders' equity
Income tax Net-of-tax Noncontrolling

Pretax amount (expense) benefit - interests (after tax) Total

2020:
Net income $ 5368 $ (1,435 $ 3933 §$ 172 % 4,105
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments 547 — 547 (12) 535

Financial instruments (146) 33 (113) (12) (125)

Pension and other postretirement benefits 11 1 12 — 12

Total other combprehensive income (loss) 412 34 446 (24) 422
Combrehensive income 5,780 (1.401) 4,379 148 4,527
Preferred dividends of subsidiary (1) — (1) — (1
Comprehensive income, after

preferred dividends of subsidiary $ 5779 § (1,401) $ 4,378 §$ 148  § 4,526
2019:
Net income $ 2585 % (387) $ 2198 $ 164  § 2,362
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments (43) — (43) 3 (40)

Financial instruments (161) 53 (108) (10) (118)

Pension and other postretirement benefits 25 (7) 18 — 18

Total other comprehensive loss (179) 46 (133) (7) (140)
Comprehensive income 2,406 (341) 2,065 157 2,222
Preferred dividends of subsidiary - () — (1 - (1)
Comprehensive income, after

preferred dividends of subsidiary $ 2405 § (341) $ 2,064 $ 157§ 2,221
2018:
Net income $ 1146 & (96) % 1,050 % 76 S 1,126
Other comprehensive income (loss):;

Foreign currency translation adjustments (144) — (144) (11) (155)

Financial instruments 64 (21) 43 13 56

Pension and other postretirement benefits - (38) 4 (34) — (34)

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (118) (17) (135) 2 (133)
Comprehensive income 1,028 (113) 915 78 993
Preferred dividends of subsidiary (1) — (1) — (1)
Comprehensive income, after

referred dividends of subsidiary $ 1027 $ (113) $ 914 $ 78 % 992

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in millions)

December 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 960 % 108
Restricted cash 22 31
Accounts receivable - trade, net 1,578 1.261
Accounts receivable — other, net 403 455
Due from unconsolidated affiliates 20 32
Income taxes receivable 113 112
Inventories 308 277
Regulatory assets 180 222
Greenhouse gas allowances 5563 72
Assets held for sale in discontinued operations — 445
Other current assets 364 324
Total current assets 4,511 3,339
Other assets:
Restricted cash 3 3
Due from unconsolidated affiliates 780 742
Regqulatory assets 1,822 1,930
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 1,019 1,082
Investment in Oncor Holdings 12,440 11,619
Other investments 1,388 2,103
Goodwill 1,602 1,602
Other intangible assets 202 213
Dedicated assets in support of certain benefit plans 512 488
Insurance receivable for Aliso Canyon costs 445 339
Deferred income taxes 136 165
Greenhaouse gas allowances 101 470
Right-of-use assets — operating leases 543 591
Wildfire fund 363 392
Assets held for sale in discontinued operations — 3,513
Other long-term assets 753 732
Total other assets 22,109 25874
Property, plant and equipment:
Property, plant and equipment 53,928 49,329
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (13,925) (12.877)
Property, plant and equipment, net 40,003 36,452
S 3 66623 $_ 65,665

See Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
Dollars in milllons)

December 31,

2020 2019
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 885 § 3,505
Accounts payable —trade 1,359 1,234
Accounts payable - other 1564 179
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 45 5
Dividends and interest payable 551 515
Accrued compensation and benefits 448 476
Requlatory liabilities 140 319
Current portion of long-term debt and finance leases 1,540 1,526
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 150 9
Greenhouse gas obligations 553 72
Liabilities held for sale in discontinued operations — 444
Other current liabilities 1,016 866
Total current liabilities 6,839 9,150
Long-term debt and finance leases 21,781 20,785
Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 234 195
Pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations, net of plan assets 1,059 1,067
Deferred income taxes 2,871 2,577
Regulatory liabilities 3,372 3.741
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 301 7
Asset retirement obligations 3 3,113 2,923
Greenhouse gas obligations — 301
Liabilities held for sale in discontinued operations : — 1,052
Deferred credits and other 2,119 2,062
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 13,069 13,925
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Equity:
Preferred stock (50 million shares authorized):
Mandatory convertible preferred stock, series A
(17.25 million shares outstandina) 1,693 1,693
Mandatory convertible preferred stock, series B
(5.75 million shares outstanding) 565 565
Preferred stock, series C
(0.9 million shares outstanding) 889 o
Common stock (750 million shares authorized; 288 million and 292 million shares
outstandina at December 31, 2020 and 2019. respectivelv: no par value) 7,053 7,480
Retained earnings 13,673 11,130
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (500) (939)
Total Sempra Enerav shareholders' equitv 23,373 19,929
Preferred stock of subsidiary 20 20
Other noncontrolling interests 1,541 1,856
Total eauitv 24,934 21,805
jabili Lty $ 66,623 § 65,665

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 4105 $ 2362 $ 1,126
Less: Income from discontinued operations, net of income tax (1,850) (363) (188)
Income from continuina operations. net of income tax 2,255 1,999 938
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,666 1,569 1,491
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 159 189 (242)
Impairment losses 1 43 1,122
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 3 (63) {513)
Equity earnings {1,015) (580) (175)
Foreign currency transaction losses (gains), net 25 21) 6
Share-based compensation expense 71 75 83
Other 132 47 106
Net change in other working capital components:
Accounts receivable (315) (91) (145)
Income taxes receivable/payable, net (94) (166) 88
Inventories (35) (22) 32
Other current assets 38 (88) (79)
Accounts payable 73 12 96
Regulatory balancing accounts (231) 13 263
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 141 (144) 56
Other current liabilities (127) (99) 52
Intercompany activities with discontinued oberations. .net — 378 70
Distributions from investments ' : 651 247 202
Insurance receivable for Aliso Canyon costs (106) 122 (43)
Wildfire fund, current and noncurrent - {323) -
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs, noncurrent 294 c -
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net 56 (399) (188)
Net cash provided bv continuina operations 3,642 2,698 3,220
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations (1.051) 380 296
Net cash provided bv opberatina activities 2.591 3,088 3.516
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (4,676) (3,708) (3.544)
Expenditures for investments and acquisitions (652) (1,797) (10,168)
Proceeds from sale of assets 19 899 1.580
Distributions from investments 761 9 10
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust assets (1,439) (914) (890) ¢
Proceeds from sales of nuclear decommissioning trust assets 1,439 914 890
Advances to unconsolidated affiliates (92) (16) (95)
Repayments of advances to unconsolidated affiliates 7 3 3
Intercompany activities with discontinued operations, net — 8 (22)
Other 15 21 31
Net cash used in continuina operations (4.618) (4.581)  (12,205)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 5171 (12) (265)
i in) i i 553 (4,593) (12.470)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(Daollars tn millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common dividends paid (1,174) (993) (877)
Preferred dividends paid (157) (142) (89)
Issuances of preferred stock, net 891 — 2,258
Issuances of common stock, net 1" 1.830 2,272
Repurchases of common stock (566) (26) (21)
Issuances of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) 6,051 4,296 8,927
Payments on debt (maturities greater than 90 days) and finance leases (5,864) (3,667) (3,342)
(Decrease) increase in short-term debt, net (1,759) 656 (84)
Advances from unconsolidated affiliates 64 155 —
Proceeds from sale of noncontrolling interests, net 26 5 a0
Purchases of noncontrolling interests (248) (30) (7)
Contributions from (distributions to) noncontrolling interests, net 1 98 (26)
Intercompany activities with discontinued operations, net — (266) (109)
Other (50) {49) (117)
Net cash (used in) provided bv continuina operations (2,774) 1,867 8,875
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 401 {392) (25)
Net cash (used in) provided bv financina activities (2,373) 1,475 8.850
Effect of exchange rate changes in continuing operations — —_— (2)
Effect of exchange rate changes in discontinued operations (3) i {12)
Effect of exchanae rate chanaes on cash. cash eauivalents and restricted cash (3} 1 (14)
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, including discontinued
operations 768 (29) (118)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, including discontinued operations, January 1 217 246 364
Cash. cash eauivalents and restricted cash. includina discontinued operations. December 31 $ 985 $ 217 § 246
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest payments, net of amounts capitalized L $1046 $1051 $ 773
Income tax payments, including discontinued operations, net of refunds 1,385 360 174
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions:
Assets acquired 5 — $ — %9670
Liabilities assumed — — (102}
Cash paid $ — 3% — $ 9568
Accrued interest receivable from unconsolidated affiliate $ — $ 55 $ 62
Accrued capital expenditures 535 515 425
Accrued commercial paper proceeds — 67 —
Increase in finance lease obligations for investment in propetty, plant and equipment 77 38 556
Increase in ARO for investment in PP&E 142 36 78
Equitization of long-term debt for deficit held by NCI 22 - —
Contribution to Cameron LNG JV 50 - —
Distribution from Cameron LNG JV 50 —_ —
Preferred dividends declared but not paid 47 36 36
Common dividends issued in stock 22 55 54
Common dividends declared but not paid 301 283 245

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEMPRA ENERGY

(Dollars in millions)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY.

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Accumulated Sempra Non-
Prefered  Common  Retained other Energy  controlling Total
stock stock earnings  °° mprehcfelnsw‘e Sha:‘i’fgﬂis interests equity

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ — $ 3149 $10147 % 626) $ 12,670 $ 2470 $ 15,140
Adoption of ASU 2017-12 2 (3) (1) (1)
Adiusted balance as of December 31, 2017 =— 3,149 10,149 (629) 12,669 2,470 15,138
Net income 1,050 1,050 76 1,126
Other comprehensive (loss) income (135) (135) 2 (133)
Share-based compensation expense 83 83 83
Dividends declared:

Series A preferred stock ($6.10/share) (105) (105) (105)

Series B preferred stock ($3.41/share) (20) (20) (20)

Common stock ($3.58/share) (969) (969) (969)
Preferred dividends of subsidiary 1) (1 (1
Issuance of series A preferred stock 1,693 1,693 1,693
Issuance of series B preferred stock 565 565 566
Issuances of common stock 2,326 2,326 2,326
Repurchases of common stock (21) 21) {21)
Noncontrolling interest activities:

Contributions 66 66

Distributions (110) (110)

Purchases ) N @ (8)

Sales, net of offering costs 4 4 86 90

Acquisition 13 13

Deconsolidations (4886) (486)
Balance at December 31, 2018 2,258 5,540 10,104 (764) 17,138 2110 19,248
Adoption of ASU 2016-02 17 17 17
Adoption of ASU 2018-02 40 (42) (2) (2)
Adijusted balance as of December 31, 2018 2,258 5,540 10,161 (806) 17,153 2,110 19,263
Net income 2,198 2,198 164 2,362
Other comprehensive loss (133) {133) (7) (140)
Share-based compensation expense 75 75 75
Dividends declared:

Series A preferred stock ($6.00/share) (103) (103) (103)

Series B preferred stock ($6.75/share) (39) (39) (39)

Common stock ($3.87/share) (1,086) (1,086) (1,086)
Preferred dividends of subsidiary ()] (1) (1)
Issuances of common stock 1,885 1,885 1,886
Repurchases of common stock (26) (26) (26)
Noncontrolling interest activities:

Contributions 175 175

Distributions 5 5 (103) (98)

Purchases 3) (3) (27) (30)

Sale 4 4 1 5

Acquisition 3 3

Deconsolidations (440) (440)
Balance at December 31, 2019 2,258 7,480 11,130 (939) 19,929 1,876 21,805

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEMPRA ENERGY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Accumulated Sempra

Preferred  Common  Retained other Energy corz\:l?c:ﬁng Total
stock stock earnings £ mprehiﬁfl'\‘/‘e sharehq.lders interests equity
Balance at December 31, 2019 2,258 7,480 11,130 (939) 19,929 1,876 21,805
Adoption of ASU 2016-13 (7) (7) (2) (9)
Adiusted balance as of December 31, 2019 2,258 7,480 1,123 {939) 19,922 1,874 21,796
Net income 3,933 3,933 172 4,106
Other comprehensive income (loss) 446 446 (24) 422
Share-based compensation expense 71 71 71
Dividends declared:
Series A preferred stock ($6.00/share) (104) (104) (104)
Series B preferred stock ($6.75/share) (39) (39) (39)
Series C preferred stock ($27.90/share) (25) (25) (25)
Common stock ($4.18/share) (1,214) (1,214) (1,214)
Preferred dividends of subsidiary 1) ()] {1
Issuances of series C preferred stock 889 889 889
Issuances of common stock 33 33 33
Repurchases of common stock (566) (568) (566)
Noncontrolling interest activities:
Contributions 1 1
Distributions (1) ()]
Purchases 34 @) 27 (275) (248)
Sale 1. 1 27 28
Acquisition 1 1
Equitization of long-term debt for
deficit held by NCI 22 22
Deconsolidation (236) {236)
Balance at Decemiber 31. 2020 $ 3,147 $ 7,053 $ 13,673 $ (500) § 23,373 $ 1,561 $ 24,934

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Operating revenues
Electric $ 4619 % 4267 $ 4,003
Natural gas 694 658 565
Total operatina revenues 5313 4,925 4 568

Operatina exoenses
Cost of electric fuel and purchased power 1,191 1,194 1,370
Cost of natural gas 162 176 152
Operation and maintenance 1,455 1.181 1,058
Depreciation and amortization 801 760 668
Franchise fees and other taxes 331 301 290
Total operatina expenses 3,940 3,612 3,558
Operatina income 1,373 1,313 1.010
Other income, net 52 39 56
Interest income 2 4 4
Interest expense (413) (411) (221)
Income before income taxes 1.014 945 849
Income tax expense (190) (171) {(173)
Net income 824 774 676
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interest — (7) {7)
i $ 824 § 767 $ 669

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
ol
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SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
SDGS&E shareholder's equity

Pretax Income tax Net-of-tax Noncontroliing
amount (expense) benefit amount interest (after tax) Al
2020:
Net income $ 1014  $ (190) $ 824 § —  $ 824
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Pension and other postretirement benefits 8 (2) 6 — 6
Total other comprehensive income 8 (2) 6 — 6
Comprehensive income 3 1022 3 (192) % 830 9% =3 830
2019:
Net income $ 938 3 (171)  $ 767 _ $ 7 8 774
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Financial instruments — = — 2 2
Pension and other postretirement benefits (6) 2 (4) — (4)
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (6) 2 (4) 2 (2)
ive | $ 932 8 (169) % 763 % 9 _ % 772
2018:
Net income $ 842 $ (173) % 668  $ 7 8 676
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Financial instruments - - - 8 8
Pension and other postretirement benefits (2) — (2) - (2)
Total other comorehensive (loss) income (2) — {2) 8 6
ive jncome Rl A 840 _$ (173) $ 667 9 15 8 682

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-20



SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{(Dollars in millions)

December 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 262 % 10
Accounts receivable — trade, net 573 398
Accounts receivable — other, net 143 119
Income taxes receivable, net — 128
Inventories 104 94
Prepaid expenses 163 120
Regqulatory assets 174 209
Fixed-price contracts and other derivatives 56 43
Greenhouse gas allowances 113 13
Other current assets 22 24
Total current assets 1.600 1,158
Other assets:
Regulatory assets 534 440
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 1,019 1,082
Greenhouse gas allowances 83 189
Right-of-use assets — operating leases 102 130
Wildfire fund 363 392
Other long-term assets 189 202
Total other assets 2,290 2,435
Property, plant and equipment;
Property, plant and equipment 24,436 22,504
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,015) (5,537)
Property, plant and equipment, net 18,421 16,967
22311 $ 20,560

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
(Dollars in millions)

December 31,
2020 2019
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ — 8 80
Accounts payable 553 496
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 64 53
Interest payable 46 43
Accrued compensation and benefits 135 138
Accrued franchise fees 56 53
Regqulatory liabilities 61 76
Current portion of long-term debt and finance leases 611 56
Customer deposits 56 74
Greenhouse gas obligations 113 13
Asset retirement obligations 117 95
Other current liabilities 199 133
Total current liabilities 2,011 1.310
Long-term debt and finance leases 6.866 6.306
Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Pension obligation, net of plan assets 92 153
Deferred income taxes 2,019 1,848
Deferred investment tax credits 13 14
Requlatory liabilities 2,195 2,319
Asset retirement obligations 759 771
Greenhouse gas obligations — 62
Deferred credits and other 626 677
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 5,704 5,844
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Shareholder's Equity:
Preferred stock (45 million shares authorized; none issued) — —_—
Common stock (255 million shares authorized; 117 million shares outstanding;
no par value) 1,660 1,660
Retained earnings 6,080 5,456
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (10) (16)
Total shareholder's eauity 7,730 7,100
iabiliti ! ity $ 22311 % 20560

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH.FLOWS
(Dollars in milllons)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 824 $ 774 $ 676
Adiustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 801 760 688
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 35 105 39
Other 27 13 (17)
Net change in other working capital components:
Accounts receivable (134) (15) 30
Due to/from affiliates, net 1 (8) (2)
Income taxes receivable/payable, net 129 (126) 23
Inventories (10} 4 3
Other current assets 4 (19) (6)
Accounts payable 31 32 (1)
Regqulatory balancing accounts {(71) {101) 138
Other current liabilities (100) 4 4
Wildfire fund, current and noncurrent — (323) —
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net (158) (10) 9
Net cash provided bv opberatina activities 1,389 1,090 1,584
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (1.942) (1,5622) (1.542)
Decrease in cash from deconsolidation of Otay Mesa VIE — (8) —_
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust assets (1,439) (914) (890)
Proceeds from sales of nuclear decommissioning trust assets 1,439 914 890
Other 8 8 —
Net cash used in investina activities (1,934) (1,522} (1,542)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common dividends paid (200) - (250)
Equity contribution from Sempra Eneray — 322 —_
Issuances of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) 1.598 400 618
Payments on debt (maturities greater than 90 days) and finance leases (510) (274) (492}
(Decrease) increase in short-term debt, net (80) (211) 38
Contributions from noncontrolling interest, net — 172 57
Debt issuance costs (11) (4) (5)
Net cash orovided bv (used in) financina activities 797 405 (34)
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 252 (27) 8
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, January 1 10 37 29
Cash. cash eauivalents and restricted cash. December 31 $ 262 % 5 [ — 37
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest payments, net of amounts capitalized $ 404 $ 405 $ 214
Income tax payments, net of refunds 25 191 112
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accrued capital expenditures $ 199 $ 174 $ 159
Increase in finance lease obligations for investment in property, plant and equipment 30 16 550
Increase (decrease) in ARO for investment in PP&E 31 (1) 35

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Bollars in millions)

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY.

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Accumuiated

other SDG&E
Common Retained comprehensive  shareholder's  Noncontrolling Total
stock earnings income (loss) equity interest equity
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1338 $4288 $ 8 $ 5598 28 § 5,626
Net income 669 669 7 676
Other comprehensive (loss) income (2} (2) 8 6
Common stock dividends declared ($2.14/share) (250) (250) {250)
Noncontrolling interest activities:
Contributions 65 65
Distributions {(8) (8)
Balance at December 31. 2018 1,338 4,687 {(10) 6,015 100 6,115
Adoption of ASU 2018-02 2 (2) — —_
Adiusted balance at December 31, 2018 1,338 4,689 (12) 6,015 100 6,115
Net income 767 767 7 774
Other comprehensive (loss) income (4) {4) 2 {(2)
Equity contribution from Sempra Energy 322 322 322
Noncontrolling interest activities:
Contributions 175 175
Distributions (3) (3)
Deconsolidation (281) (281)
Balance at December 31. 2019 1,660 5,456 (16) 7.100 — 7.100
Net income 824 824 — 824
Other comprehensive income 6 6 — 6
Common stock dividends declared ($1.72/share) {200) {200) {200)
$ 1660 $ 6.080 $ (10) $ 7730 $ — $ 7.730

Ses Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Operating revenues $ 4748 $ 4525 $ 3,962
Operatina expenses

Cost of natural gas 783 977 1,048
Operation and maintenance 2,029 1,780 1,613
Aliso Canvyon litigation and requlatory matters 307 — —
Depreciation and amortization 654 602 556
Franchise fees and other taxes 190 173 154
Impairment losses - 37 —
Total operatina expenses 3,963 3,569 3,371
Operatina income 785 956 591
Other (expense) income, net (28) (55) 15
Interest income 2 2 2
Interest expense (158) (141) (115)
Income before income taxes 601 762 493
Income tax expense (96) (120} (92)
Net income 505 642 401
Preferred dividends (1 (1 (1)
i 5 504 8 641 $ 400

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

(Dollars in millions)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Pretax Income tax Net-of-tax
amount (expense) benefit amount
2020:
Net income 601 $ {96) % 505
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Pension and other postretirement benefits (12) 4 (8)
Total other comprehensive loss {12) 4 (8)
Comprehensive income 580§ (92) % 497
2019:
Net income 762 $ (120) % 642
Other comorehensive income floss):
Financial instruments 1 — 1
Pension and other postretirement benefits 1 (1) —
Total other comprehensive income 2 (1) 1
jve i 764 % (121 % 643
2018:
Net income 493  $ (92) $ 401
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Financial instruments 1 — 1
Total other comorehensive income 1 = 1
ve | 494  § (92) § 402

See Notes to Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS
(Dallars in milions)

December 31,

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4 % 10
Accounts receivable — trade, net 786 710
Accounts receivable — other, net 64 87
Due from unconsolidated affiliates 22 1"
Income taxes receivable, net — 161
Inventories 153 136
Regulatory assets 16 7
Greenhouse gas allowances 390 52
Other current assets 47 44
Total current assets 1,482 1,218
Other assets:
Regulatory assets 1,208 1,407
Insurance receivable for Aliso Canyon costs 445 339
Greenhouse gas allowances 9 248
Right-of-use assets — operating leases 74 94
Other long-term assets 499 447
Total other assets 2,235 2,535
Property, plant and equipment:
Property, plant and equipment 21,180 19,362
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (6.437) (6.038)
Propertv. plant and eauioment. net 14,743 13.324
5 18,460 % 17.077

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS {CONTINUED)
Dollars in millions)

December 31,
2020 2019
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 113 & 630
Accounts payable — trade 600 545
Accounts payable — other 122 110
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 31 47
Accrued compensation and benefits 189 182
Regulatory liabilities 79 243
Current portion of long-term debt and finance leases 10 6
Customer deposits 48 71
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 150 9
Greenhouse gas obligations 390 52
Asset retirement obligations 59 65
Other current liabilities 291 222
Total current liabilities 2082 2182
Long-term debt and finance leases 4,763 3,788
Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Pension obligation, net of plan assets 853 785
Deferred income taxes 1,406 1.403
Deferred investment tax credits 8 7
Regqulatory liabilities 1177 1,422
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 301 7
Asset retirement obligations 2,309 2,112
Greenhouse gas obligations - 208
Deferred credits and other 417 415
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 6.471 6.359
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock (11 million shares authorized; 1 million shares outstanding) 22 22
Common stock (100 million shares authorized; 91 million shares outstanding; no par value) 866 866
Retained earnings 4,287 3,883
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (31) (23)
Total sharehoiders’ eauitv 5,144 4,748
iabiliti ' equity $ 18,460 § 17,077

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 505 $ 642 $ 401
Adijustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 654 602 556
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (112) 88 78
Impairment losses — 37 —
Other 59 (5) (7)
Net change in working capital components:
Accounts receivable (101 (73) (87)
Due toffrom affiliates, net (27) (1) (10)
Income taxes receivable/payable, net 189 (156) 14
Inventories (19) 1 (2)
Other current assets (12) (9) 11
Accounts payable 64 (7) 71
Requlatory balancing accounts (160) 114 125
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs 141 (144) 56
Other current liabilities 21) (21) (6)
Insurance receivable for Aliso Canyon costs (108) 122 (43)
Reserve for Aliso Canyon costs, noncurrent 294 — —_
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net 178 (322) (144)
Net cash brovided bv operatina activities 1,526 868 1.013
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (1,843) (1,439) (1,538)
Other - 1 7
Net cash used in investina activities (1,843) (1,438} {1.531)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common dividends paid (100) (150) (50)
Preferred dividends paid (1) (1) (1)
Issuances of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) 949 349 949
Payments on debt (maturities greater than 90 days) and finance leases (12) (6) (500)
{Decrease) increase in short-term debt, net (517) 374 140
Debt issuance costs (8) (4) (10)
Net cash provided bv financina activities 311 562 528
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6) (8) 10
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 10 18 8
Cash and cash eauivalents. December 31 $ 4 3 10 __ $ 18
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest pavments, net of amounts capitalized $ 146 $ 126 $ 105
Income tax payments, net of refunds 19 188 —
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accrued capital expenditures $ 208 $ 205 $ 1A
Increase in finance lease obligations for investment in property, plant and equipment 47 22 6
Increase in ARO for investment in PP&E 107 35 35

See Notes to Financial Statements
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(Dollars in millions)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN. SHAREHOL DERS' EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Accumulated

other Total
Preferred Common Retained comprehensive  shareholders’
stock stock earnings income (loss) equity
Balance at December 31, 2017 2 $ 866 $ 3,040 % 21) $ 3,907
Net income 401 401
Other comprehensive income 1 1
Dividends declared:
Preferred stock ($1.50/share) (1) (&)
Common stock ($0.55/share) (50) (50)
Balance at December 31, 2018 22 866 3,390 (20) 4,258
Adoption of ASU 2018-02 2 (4) (2)
Adiusted balance as of December 31. 2018 22 866 3,392 (24) 4,256
Net income 642 642
Other comprehensive income 1 1
Dividends declared:
Preferred stock ($1.50/share) (1) (1)
Common stock ($1.64/share) (150) (150)
Balance at December 31. 2019 22 866 3,883 (23) 4,748
Net income 505 505
Other comprehensive loss (8) (8)
Dividends declared:
Preferred stock ($1.50/share) (1) {1)
Common stock ($1.10/share) {100) (100)
2020 22 % 866§ 4287 § (31) % 5,144

See Notes to Financial Statements
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SEMPRA ENERGY AND SURSIDIARIES T —

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Sempra Energy

Sempra Energy’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Sempra Energy, a California-based energy-services
holding company, and its consolidated subsidiaries and VIEs. Sempra Giobal is the holding company for our subsidiaries that are
not subject to California or Texas utility regulation. Sempra Energy’s businesses were managed within six separate reportable
segments until April 2019 and five separate reportable segments thereafter, which we discuss in Note 17. All references in these
Notes to our reportable segments are not intended to refer to any legal entity with the same or similar name.

SDG&E
SDG&E'’s Consolidated Financial Statements include its accounts and the accounts of a VIE of which SDG&E was the primary

beneficiaty until August 23, 2019, at which time SDG&E deconsolidated the VIE, as we discuss below in “Variable Interest
Entities.” SDG&E’s common stock is wholly owned by Enova, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sempra Energy.

SoCalGas
SoCalGas’ common stock is wholly owned by PE, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sempra Energy.

In this report, we refer to SDG&E and SoCalGas collectively as the California Utilities.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

This is a combined report of Sempra Energy, SDG&E and SoCalGas. We provide separate information for SDG&E and SoCalGas
as required. References in this report to “we,” “our,” “us” and “Sempra Energy Consolidated” are to Sempra Energy and its
consolidated entities, unless otherwise indicated by the context. We have eliminated intercompany accounts and transactions
within the consolidated financial statements of each reporting entity.

Throughout these Notes, we refer to the following as Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements when discussed together or collectively:
* the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes of Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries and VIEs;

= the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes of SDG&E and its VIE (until deconsolidation of the VIE
in August 2019); and

= the Financial Statements and related Notes of SoCalGas.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements

We have prepared our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. This requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes, including the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Although we believe the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable, actual amounts ultimately may differ significantly from those estimates.

o PR
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In January 2019, our board of directors approved a plan to sell our South American businesses based on our strategic focus on
North America. We determined that these businesses, which previously constituted the Sempra South American Utilities segment
and certain activities associated with these businesses, met the held-for-sale criteria. These businesses are presented as
discontinued operations, which we discuss further in Note 5. We completed the sales in the second quarter of 2020. Our
discussions in the Noies below relate only to our continuing operations uniess otherwise noted.
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We evaluated events and transactions that occurred after December 31, 2020 ﬂuoubh the date the financial statements were

issued, and in the opinion of management, the accompanying statements reflect all adjustments and disclosures necessary for a
fair presentation,

EFFECTS OF REGULATION

The California Utilities” accounting policies and financial statements reflect the application of U.S. GAAP provisions governing
rate-regulated operations and the policies of the CPUC and the FERC. Under these provisions, a regulated utility records
regulatory assets, which are generally costs that would otherwise be charged to expense, if it is probable that, through the
ratemaking process, the utility will recover those assets from customers. To the extent that recovery is no longer probable, the
reiated regulatory assets are written off. Regulatory liabilities generaily represent amounis coliected from customers in advance of
the actual expenditure by the utility. If the actual expenditures are less than amounts previously collected from ratepayers, the
excess would be refunded to customers, generally by reducing future rates. Regulatory Liabilities may also arise from other
transactions such as unrealized gains on fixed price contracts and other derivatives or certain deferred income tax benefits that are
passed through to customers in future rates. In addition, the California Utilities record regulatory liabilities when the CPUC or the
FERC requires a refund to be made to customers or has required that a gain or other transaction of net allowable costs be given to
customers over future periods.

Determining probability of recovery of regulatory assets requires significant judgment by management and may include, but is
not limited to, consideration of:

» the nature of the event giving rise to the assessment

« existing statotes and regulatory code

= legal precedents

= regulatory principles and analogous regulatory actions

= testimony presented in regulatory hearings

= regulatory orders

* a commission-authorized mechanism established for the accumulation of costs
* status of applications for rehearings or state court appeals

* specific approval from a commission

= historical experience

Sempra Mexico’s natural gas distribution utility, Ecogas, also applies U.S. GAAP for rate-regulated utilities to its operations,
including the same evaluation of probability of recovery of regulatory assets described above.

We provide information concerning regulatory assets and liabilities in Note 4.

Our Sempra Texas Utilities segment is comprised of our equity method investments in Oncor Holdings, which, at December 31,
2020, owns an 80.25% interest in Oncor, and Sharyland Holdings, which owns 100% of Sharyland Utilities. Oncor and Sharyland
Utilities are regulated electric transmission and distribution utilities in Texas and their rates are regulated by the PUCT and certain
cities and are subject to regulatory rate-setting processes and annual earnings oversight. Oncor and Sharyland Utilities prepare
their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of U.S. GAAP governing rate-regulated operations.

Our Sempra Mexico segment includes the operating companies of our subsidiary, IEnova, as well as certain holding companies
and risk management activity. Certain business activitics at [Enova ate regulated by the CRE and meet the regulatory accounting
requirements of U.S. GAAP. Pipeline projects currently under construction at IEnova that meet the regulatory accounting
requirements of U.S. GAAP record the impact of AFUDC related to equity. We discuss AFUDC below in “Property, Plant and
Equipment.”
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

We measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, pnmanly NDT and benefit plan trust assets and
derivatives. We also measure certain assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis in certain circumstances.

A fair value measurement reflects the assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on the best
available information. These assumptions include the risk inherent in a particular vatuation technique (such as a pricing model)
and the risks inherent in the inputs to the model. Also, we consider an issuer’s credit standing when measuring its liabilitics at fair
value.

We establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Pricing inpuls are unadjusted quoted prices available in active markels for identical assets or liabilities as of the
reporting date. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Our Level 1 financial instruments primarily consist of listed equities and U.S,
govemnment treasury securities, primarily in the NDT and benefit plan trusts, and exchange-traded derivatives.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation
methodologies. These models are primarily industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including;

= quoted forward prices for commodities

= time value

= current matket and contractual prices for the underlymg instruments

= volatility factors

= other relevant economic measures

Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument and can be
derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace. Our
financial instruments in this category include listed equities, domestic corporate bonds, municipal bonds and other foreign bonds,
primarily in the NDT and benefit plan trusts, and non-exchange-traded derivatives such as interest rate instruments and over-the-
counter forwards and options.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inputs may be
used with internally developed methodologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair value from the perspective of a
market participant. Our Level 3 financial instruments consist of CRRs and fixed-price electricity positions at SDG&E and the
Support Agreement at Sempra LNG.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
Cash equivalents are highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Restricted cash includes funds primarily denominated in Mexican pesos to pay for rights-of-way, license fees, permits,
topographic surveys and other costs pursuant to trust and debt agreements related to pipeline projects at Sempra Mexico.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets to the sum of such amounts reported on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

(Dollars in milllons)

At December 31,
2020 2019

Sempra Energy Consolidated:
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Cash and cash equivalents $

960 $ 108
Restricted cash, current 22 31
Restricted cash, noncurrent 3 3
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in discontinued operations — 75
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows $ 985 % 217

In the Sempra Energy Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2020, the ending cash, cash

equivalents and restricted cash balance in discontinued operations of $4.6 billion is considered to be cash, cash equivalents and

restricted cash for continuing operations following the sales of the South American businesses.
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CREDIT LOSSES 1 . o :

T e

We are exposed to credit losses from financial assets measured at amortized cost, including trade and other accounts receivable
and amounts due from unconsolidated affiliates. We are also exposed to credit losses from off-balance sheet arrangements through
our guarantees of Cameron LNG JV’s debt.

We regularly monitor and evaluate credit losses and record allowances for expected credit losses, if necessary, for trade and other
accounts receivable using a combination of factors, including past-due status based on contractual terms, trends in write-offs, the
age of the receivable, historical and industry trends, counterparty creditworthiness, economic conditions and specific events, such
as bankruptcies. We write off financial assets measured at amortized cost in the period in which we determine they are not
recoverable. We record recoveries of amounts previously written off when it is known that they will be recovered.

In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, the California Utilities have implemented certain measures to assist customers,
including suspending service disconnections due to nonpayment for residential and small business customers, waiving late
payment fees for business customers, and offering flexible payment plans to customers experiencing difficulty paying their
electric or gas bills. As we discuss in Note 4, the CPUC authorized each of the California Utilities to track and request recovery of
incremental costs, including uncollectible expenses, associated with complying with residential and small business customer
protection measures implemented by the CPUC related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

In June 2020, the CPUC issued a decision in a separate proceeding addressing service disconnections that, among other things,
allows each of the California Utilities to establish a two-way balancing account to record the uncollectible expenses associated
with residential customers’ inability to pay their electric or gas bills. This decision also directs the California Utilities to establish
an AMP that provides successfully participating, income-qualified residential customers with relief from outstanding utility bill
amounts. Refcr to Notc 4 for turthicr discussion.

The California Utilities have recorded increases in their allowances for expected credit losses as of December 3 1, 2020 primarily
related to expected forgiveness of outstanding utility bill amounts, including increases duc to the effect of the COVID-19
pandemic, for residentiai customers eligibie under the AMP. Our businesses wili coniinue to monitor macroeconomic faciors and
customer payment patterns when evaluating their allowances for credit losses in future reporting periods, which may increase
significantly due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic or other factors.

We provide below allowances and changes in allowances for credit losses for trade and other accounts receivable, excluding
allowances related to amounts due from unconsolidated affiliates and off-balance sheet arrangements, which we discuss
separately below the table. The California Utilities record changes in the allowances for credit losses related to Accounts
Receivable — Trade in regulatory accounts.
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TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — ALLOWANCES FOR CREDIT LOSSES
(Liollars in millions),

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Sempra Energy Consolidated:

Allowances for credit losses at January 1 $ 20§ - 25
Incremental allowance upon adoption of ASU 2016-13 1 — —
Provisions for expected credit losses 124 22 10
Write-offs (16) (14) {14)
«Allowances for ¢reditlosses at December 31 $ 138 9 29 8 21
SDG&E:

Allowances for credit losses at January 1 $ 14 9 " $ 9
Provisions for expected credit losses 65 10 9
Wirite-offs (10) (7) (7)

Allowances for creditlosses af December 31? $ 69 _$ 14 9 1

SoCalGas:

Allowances for credit losses at January 1 $ 15 % 10 § 16

Provisions for expected credit losses 59 12 1

Write-offs (6) (1) (7)
ﬂwwwt December 318 $ 68§ 15§ 10

Balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019 include $111 million and $7 miliion, respectively, in Accounts Receivable — Trade, Net and
827 million and $22 million, respectively, in Accounts Receivable — Other, Net.,

@ Balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019 include $55 miflion and $4 million, respectively, in Accounts Receivable — Trads, Net and
$14 milfion and $10 million, respectively, in Accounts Recelvable Other, Net.

& Balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019 include $55 million and $3 million, respectively, in Accounts Receivable — Trade, Net and

—— —d

8713 miflion and $12 miflion, respectively, in Accounts Receivahle — Other, Net,

For amounts due from unconsolidated affiliates and off-balance sheet arrangements, on a quarterly basis, we evaluate credit losses
and record allowances for expected credit losses, if necessary, based on credit quality indicators such as external credit ratings,
published defauit rate studies, the maturity date of the instrument and past delinquencies. However, we do not record allowances
for expected credit losses related to accrued interest receivable on loans due from unconsolidated affiliates because we write off
such amounts, if any, through a reversal of interest income in the period we determine such amounts are uncollectible. In the
absence of external credit ratings, we may utilize an internally developed credit rating based on our analysis of a counterparty’s

financial statements to determine our expected credit losses.

As we discuss below in “Transactions with Affiliates,” we have loans due from unconsolidated affiliates with varying tenors,
interest rates and currencies. We provide below the changes in allowances for credit losses for loans and other amounts due from
unconsolidated affiliates.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES — ALLOWANCES FOR CREDIT LOSSES

(Dollars in_millions

Sempra

Energy
Consalidatadl)
Allowances for credit losses at January 1, 2020 $ —
Allowance established upon adoption of ASU 2016-13 6
Reduction to expected credit losses (3)
Allowances for credit losses at December 31,2020 $ 3

" Balance at December 31, 2020 inciudes negligible amounts and $3 million in Due from Unconsolidated Affiliates — Current and Due from
Unconsolidated Affiliates — Noncurrent, respectively.

As we discuss in Note 6, Sempra Energy has provided guarantees for the benefit of Cameron LNG JV related to its debt
obligations for a maximum aggregate amount of $4.0 billion. We established a liability for credit losses of $6 million for this off-
balance sheet arrangement upon adoption of ASU 2016-13 on January 1, 2020 and we subsequently reduced this liability by
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$4 million in the year ended December 31, 2020 through a reduction to credit 3 ammmmmw
Sempra Energy Consolidated Statement of Operations. At December 31, 2020, expected credit losses of $2 million are included in

Other Current Liabilities on the Sempra Energy Consolidated Balance Sheet.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that would be incurred as a result of nonperformance by our counterparties on their contractual
obligations. We have policies governing the management of credit risk that are administered by the respective credit departments
at each of our segments and overseen by their separate risk management committees.

This oversight includes calculating current and potential credit risk on a regular basis and monitoring actual balances in
comparison to approved limits. We establish credit limits based on risk and return considerations under terms customarily
available in the industry. We avoid concentration of counterparties whenever possible, and we believe our credit policies
significantly reduce overall credit risk. These policies include an evaluation of:

* prospective counterparties’ financial condition (including credit ratings)
= collateral requitemenis

* the use of standardized agreements that allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single
counterparty
= downgrade triggers

We believe that we have provided adequate reserves for counterparty nonperformance in our allowances for credit losses.

When our development projects become operational, we rely significantly on the ability of suppliets to perform under long-term
agreements and on our ability to enforce contract terms in the event of nonperformance. Also, the factors that we consider in
evaluating a development project include negotiating customer and supplier agreements and, therefore, we rely on these
agreements for future performance. We also may condition our decision to go forward on development projects on first obtaining
these customer and suppiier agreements,

INVENTORIES

The California Utilities value natural gas inventory using the last-in first-out method. As inventories are sold, differences between
the last-in first-out valuation and the estimated replacement cost are reflected in customer rates. These differences are generally
temporary, but may become permanent if the natural gas inventory withdrawn from storage during the year is not replaced by year
end. The California Utilities generally value materials and supplies at the lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Sempra Mexico and Sempra LNG value natural gas inventory and materials and supplies at the lower of average cost or net
realizable vaiue. Sempra Mexico and Sempra LNG vaiue LNG inveniory using the firsi-in first-out method.

The components of inventories are as follows:

INVENTORY BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31

_(Dallars in millions)

Natural gas LNG Materials and supplies Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Sempra Enerqy Consolidated $ 118 $ 10 |8 7 $ 9% 183 $ 158 | $ 308 $ 277
SDG&E — 1 — - 104 93 104 94
SoCalGas 94 90 — S 59 46 163 136

WILDFIRE FUND

In July 2019, the Wildfire Legislation was signed into law. The Wildfire Legislation addresses certain issues related to
catastrophic wildfires in the State of California and their impact on electric IOUs. Investor-owned gas distribution utilitics such as
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SoCalGas are not covered by this legislation. The issues addressed include wildfire nuumnon cost recovery Standards ;
requirements, a wildfire fund, a cap on liability, and the establishment of a wildfire safety board.

The Wildfire Legislation provided that SDG&E would not recover the ROE on its first $215 million of fire risk mitigation capital
expenditures.

The Wildfire Legislation established a revised legal standard for the recovery of wildfire costs (Revised Prudent Manager
Standard) and established a fund (the Wildfire Fund) designed to provide liquidity to SDG&E, PG&E and Edison to pay IOU
wildfire-related claims in the event that the governmental agency responsible for determining causation determines the applicable
I0U’s equipment caused the ignition of a wildfire, primary insurance coverage is exceeded and certain other conditions are
satisfied. A primary purpose of the Wildfire Fund is to pool resources provided by shareholders and ratepayers of the IOUs and
make those resources available to reimburse the I0Us for third-party wildfire claims incurred after July 12, 2019, the effective
date of the Wildfire Legisiation, subject to certain limitations.

An 10U may seek payment from the Wildfire Fund for settled or adjudicated third-party damage claims arising from certain
wildfires that exceed, in aggregate in a calendar year, the greater of $1 billion or the IQU’s required amount of insurance coverage
as recommended by the Wildfire Fund’s administrator. Wildfire claims approved by the Wildfire Fund’s administrator will be paid
by the Wildfire Fund to the IOU to the extent funds are available. These utilized funds will be subject to review by the CPUC,

which will make a determination as to the degree an IOU’s conduct related to an ignition of a wildfire was prudent or imprudent.
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paid when determining the reasonableness of an IOU’s conduct related to an ignition. Under this standard, the conduct under
review related to the ignition may include factors within and beyond the IOU’s control, including humidity, temperature and
winds. Costs and expenses may be allocated for cost recovery in full or in part. Also, under this standard, an IOU’s conduct will
be deemed reasonable if a valid annual safety certification is in place at the time of the ignition, unless a serious doubt is raised, in
which case the burden shifts to the utility to dispel that doubt. The IOUs will receive an annual safety certification from the CPUC
if they meet various requirements.

If an IOU has maintained a valid annual safety certification, to the extent it is found to be imprudent, claims will be reimbursable
by the IOU to the Wildfire Fund up to a cap based on the IOU’s rate base. The aggregate requirement to reimburse the Wildfire
Fund over a trailing three calendar year period is capped at 20% of the equity portion of an IOU’s electric transmission and
distribution rate base in the year of the prudency determination. Based on its 2020 rate base, the liability cap for SDG&E is
approximately $950 million, which is adjusted annually. The liability cap will apply on a rolling three-year basis so long as future

annual safety certifications are reccived and the Wildfire Fund has not been terminated, which could occur if funds are exhausted.
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an IOU to the Wildfire Fund. The Wildfire Fund does not have a specified term and coverage will continue untll the assets of the
Wildfire Fund are exhausted and the Wildfire Fund is terminated, in which case, the remaining funds, if any, will be transferred to
California’s general fund to be used for fire risk mitigation programs.

In June 2020, the CPUC approved SDG&E’s 2020 wildfire mitigation plan, which is effective until the CPUC approves a new
plan. In addition, on September 14, 2020, SDG&E received its 2020 safety certification from the Wildfire Safety Division of the
CPUC. The certificate is vatid for 12 months from the issue date.

The Wildlire Fund has been initially funded up to $10.5 billion by a loan from the State of California Surplus Money Investinent
Fund. The loan is financed through a DWR bond, which was put in place on October 1, 2020 and is securitized through a
dedicated surcharge on ratepayers’ bills attributable to the DWR. In October 2019, the CPUC adopted a decision authorizing a
non-bypassable charge to be collected by the IOUs to support the anticipated DWR bond issuance authorized by AB 1054, The
CPUC decision also determined that ratepayers of non-participating electrical corporations shall not pay the non-bypassable
charge.

The Wildfire Fund has also been funded $7.5 billion from initial shareholder contributions from the IOUs (SDG&E’s share was
$322.5 million, PG&E’s share was $4.8 billion and Edison’s share was $2.4 billion). The I0Us are also required to make annual
shareholder contributions to the Wildfire Fund with an aggregate value of $3 billion over a 10-year period starting in 2019
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subject to rate recovery.

In a complaint filed in U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California in July 2019, plaintiffs seek to invalidate AB
1054 based on allegations that the legislation violates federal law. That court dismissed the complaint and the plaintiffs have
petitioned the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to review the dismissal.

Wildfire Fund Asset and Obligation

In the third quarter of 2019, SDG&E recorded both a Wildfire Fund asset and a related obligation of $451.5 million for its
commitment to make shareholder contributions to the Wildfire Fund, measured at present value as of July 25, 2019 (the date by
which both Edison and SDG&E opted to contribute to the Wildfire Fund). SDG&E paid its initial shareholder contribution of
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with proceeds from an equity
contribution from Sempra Energy. Sempra Energy funded the equity contribution to SDG&E with proceeds from settling forward
sale agreements through physical delivery of shares of Sempra Energy common stock in exchange for cash, which we discuss in
Note 14. Edison paid its initial sharcholder contribution in September 2019 and PG&E paid its initial shareholder contribution in
July 2020 after receiving bankruptcy court approval to participate in the Wildfire Fund. SDG&E expects to make annual
sharcholder contributions of $12.9 million through December 31, 2028. SDG&E accretes the present value of the Wildfire Fund
obligation until the liability is settled.

SDG&E is amortizing the Wildfire Fund asset on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of benefit, as adjusted for
utilization by the IOUs. The estimated period of benefit of the Wildfire Fund asset is 15 years and is based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to:

* historical wildfire expetience of each IOU in the State of California, including frequency and severity of the wildfires

* the value of property potentially damaged by wildfires

* the effectiveness of wildfire risk mitigation efforts by each IOU

» liability cap of each IOU

+ 10U prudency determination levels

* FERC jurisdictional allocation levels

* insurance coverage levels

The use of different assumptions, or changes to the assumptions used, could have a significant impact on the estimated period of
benefit of the Wildfire Fund asset. SDG&E periodically evaluates the estimated period of benefit of the Wildfire Fund asset based
on actual experience and changes in these assumptions. SDG&E may recognize a reduction of its Wildfire Fund asset and record a
charge against carnings in the period when there is a reduction of the available coverage due to recoverable claims from any of the
participating IOUs. Wildfire claims that are recoverable from the Wildfire Fund, net of anticipated or actual reimbursement to the
Wildfire Fund by the responsible IOU, would decrease the Wildfire Fund asset and remaining available coverage. Although
California experienced some of the largest wildfires in its history in 2020 (measured by acres burned), including fires in each
participating JOU’s service territory, SDG&E is not aware of any claims made by any participating IOU requiring a reduction of
the Wildfire Fund asset as of December 31, 2020.

The following table summarizes the location of balances related to the Wildfire Fund on Sempra Energy’s and SDG&E’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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WILDFIRE FUND
(Dollars in.millions)

December 31,

Location 2020 2019
Wildfire Fund asset:
Current Other Current Assets!? $ 29 § 29
Noncurrent Wildfire Fund 363 392
Wildfire Fund obligation:
Current Other Current Liabilities $ 13 % 13
Noncurrent Deferred Credits and Other 5. 86
Years ended December 31,
2020 2019
Amortization of Wildfire Fund asset Operation and Maintenance  § 29 % 12
Accretion of Wildfire Fund obligation Operation and Maintenance 2 1

™ Included in Prepaid Expenses for SDG&E.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense includes current and deferred income taxes. We record deferred income taxes for temporary differences
between the book and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Investment tax credits from prior years are amortized to income by the
California Utilities over the estimated service lives of the properties as required by the CPUC.

Under the regulatory accounting treatment required for flow-through temporary differences, the California Utilities and Sempra
Mexico recognize:

* regulatory assets to offset deferred income tax liabilities if it is probable that the amounts will be recovered from customers; and
= regulatory liabilities to offset deferred income tax assets if it is probable that the amounts will be returned to customers.

When there are uncertainties related to potential income tax benefits, in order to qualify for recognition, the position we take has
to have at least a more-likely-than-not chance of being sustained (based on the position’s technical merits) upon challenge by the
respective authorities. The term “more-likely-than-not” means a likelihood of more than 50%. Otherwise, we may not recognize
any of the potential tax benefit associated with the position. We recognize a benefit for a tax position that meets the more-likely-

=An

than-not criterion at the iargest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon its effective resoiution.
Unrecognized income tax benefits involve management’s judgment regarding the likelihood of the benefit being sustained. The

final resolution of uncertain tax positions could result in adjustments to recorded amounts and may affect our ETR.

We accrue income tax to the extent we intend to repatriate cash to the U.S. from our continuing international operations. We
currently do not record deferred income taxes for other basis differences between financial statement and income tax investment
amounts in non-U.S. subsidiaries to the extent the related cumulative undistributed earings are indefinitely reinvested. We
recognize income tax expense for basis differences related to global intangible low-taxed income as a period cost if and when
incurred.

We provide additional information about income taxes in Note 8.
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GREENHOUSE GAS ALLOWANCES AND OBLIGATIONS St

The California Utilities, Sempra Mexico and Sempra LNG are required by AB 32 to acquire GHG allowances for every metric ton
of carbon dioxide equivalent emitted into the atmosphere duting electric generation and natural gas transportation. At the
California Utilities, many GHG allowances are allocated to us on behalf of our customers at no cost. We record purchased and
allocated GHG allowances at the lower of weighted-average cost or market. We measure the compliance obligation, which is
based on emissions, at the carrying value of allowances held plus the fair value of additional allowances necessary to satisfy the
obligation. The California Utilities balance costs and revenues associated with the GHG program through regulatory balancing
accounts. Sempra Mexico and Sempra LNG record the cost of GHG obligations in cost of sales. We remove the assets and
liabilities from the balance sheets as the allowances are surrendered.

RENEWABLE ENERGY CERTIFICATES

RECs are energy rights established by governmental agencies for the environmental and social promotion of renewable electricity
generation. A REC, and its associated attributes and benefits, can be sold separately from the underlying physical electricity
associated with a renewable-based generation source in certain markets.

Retail sellers of electricity obtain RECs through renewable energy PPAs, internal generation or separate purchases in the market
to comply with the RPS Program established by the governmental agencies. RECs provide documentation for the generation of a
unit of renewable energy that is used to verify compliance with the RPS Program. The cost of RECs at SDG&E, which is
recoverable in rates, is recorded in Cost of Electric Fuel and Purchased Power on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PP&E is recorded at cost and primarily represents the buildings, equipment and other facilities used by the California Utilities to
provide natural gas and electric utility services, and by the Sempra Global businesses in their operations, including construction
work in progress. PP&E also includes lease improvements and other equipment at Parent and Other. Our plant costs include labor,
materials and contract services and expenditures for replacement parts incurred during a major maintenance outage of a plant. In
addition, the cost of utility plant at our rate-regulated businesses and PP&E under regulated projects that meet the regulatory
accounting requirements of U.S. GAAP includes AFUDC. The cost of PP&E includes capitalized interest. Maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred. The cost of most retired depreciable utility plant assets less salvage value is charged to accumulated
depreciation.

We discuss assets collateralized as security for certain indebtedness in Note 7.
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(Dollars.in millions)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY MAJOR FUNCTIONAL CATEGC BV

December 31,
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Depreciation rates for years ended
December 31,

2020 2018 2020 2019 2018
SDG&E:
Natural gas operations 28056 $ 2,534 251 % 247 % 2.44 %
Electric distribution 8,592 7,985 3.90 3.94 3.91
Electric transmission 7,156 6,577 3.10 2.79 2.76
Electric generation 2,440 2,415 4,56 4.50 412
Other electric 1,743 1,492 6.92 6.61 6.43
Construction work in progress® 1,700 1,501 NA NA NA
Total SDG&E 24,436 22,6504
SoCalGas:
Natural gas operations 19,961 18,370 3.63 3.60 3.60
Other non-utility 45 34 3.80 5.08 5.39
Construction work in progress 1,174 958 NA NA NA
Total SoCalGas 21,180 19,362
. Weighted-average
Other operating units and parent®: Estimated useful lives useful life
Land and land rights 283 278 16 to 50 years® 31
Machinery and equipment:
Generating plants 1,288 1,154 11 to 25 years 22
LNG terminals 1,138 1,134 43 years 43
Pipelines and storage 3,482 3,596 5 to 50 years 44
Other 359 180 1 to 50 years 14
Construction work in progress 1,514 895 NA NA
Other 248 226 4 to 50 years 23
8,312 7,463
Total Sempra Energy Consolidated $ 53928 § 49329

(W At December 31, 2020, includes $505 million in electric transmission assets and $8 million in construction work in progress related to
SDG&E'’s 88% interest in the Southwest Powerlink transmission line, jointly owned by SDG&E with other utilities. SOG&E, and each of the
other owners, holds its undivided interest as a tenant in common in the property. Each owner is responsible for its share of the project and
participates in decisions concerning operations and capital expenditures. SDG&E’s share of operating expenses is included in Sempra
Energy’s and SDG&E's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

@
assets at Ecogas.

@ Estimated useful lives are for land rights.

Includes $191 million and $178 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of utility plant, primarily pipelines and other distribution

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the asset’s estimated composite useful life, the CPUC-
prescribed period for the California Utilities, or the remaining term of the site Ieases, whichever is shortest.

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

(Dollars in millfons)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Sempra Energy Consolidated $ 1,646 1,651 $ 1,470
SDG&E 797 757 686
SoCalGas 649 598 553
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
(Dollars in millions).

December 31,

2020 2019
SDG&E:
Accumulated depreciation:
Natural gas operations $ 870 % 832
Electric transmission, distribution and generationt 5145 4,705
Total SDG&E 6.015 5537
SoCalGas:
Accumulated depreciation:
Natural gas operations 6,422 6,023
Other non-utility 15 15
Total SoCalGas 6,437 6,038
Other operatina units and parent and other:
Accumulated deoreciation — other@ 1.473 1,302
~lotal Semera Eneray Consolidated $ 13925 $ 12877

) Includes $277 million at December 31, 2020 related to SDG&E’s 88% interest in the Southwest Powerlink transmission line, Jointly owned by
SDG&E and other utilities,

@ Includes $51 million and $49 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of accumulated depreciation for utility plant at Ecogas.

The California Utilities finance their construction projects with debt and equity funds. The CPUC and the FERC allow the
recovery of the cost of these funds by the capitalization of AFUDC, calculated using rates authorized by the CPUC and the FERC,
as a cost component of PP&E. The California Utilities earn a return on the capitalized AFUDC after the utility property is placed
in service and recover the AFUDC from their customers over the expected useful lives of the assets.

Pipeline projects currently under construction by Sempra Mexico that are both subject to certain regulation and meet U.S. GAAP
regulatory accounting requirements record the impact of AFUDC.

We capitalize interest costs incurred to finance capital projects and interest at équity method investments that have not

commenced planned principal operations.

The table below summarizes capitalized interest and AFUDC.

CAPITALIZED FINANCING COSTS

(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Sempra Energy Consolidated $ 202 % 183 $ 193
SDG&E 104 75 82
SoCalGas 55 47 48

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired companies measured at
the time of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized, but we test it for impairment annually on October 1 or whenever events or
changes in circumstances necessitate an evaluation. If the carrying value of the reporting unit, including goodwill, exceeds its fair
value, we record a goodwill impairment loss as the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value, not to exceed
the carrying amount of goodwili.

For our annual goodwill impairment testing, under current U.S. GAAP guidance we have the option to first make a qualitative
assessment of whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount before
applying the quantitative goodwill impairment test. If we elect to perform the qualitative assessment, we evaluate relevant events
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and circumstances, including but not limited to, macroeconomic conditions, 111duslrv mums cost facfors.
changes in key personnel and the overall financial performance of the reporting unit. If, after assessing these qualitative factors,
we determine that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then we perform
the quantitative goodwill impairment test. If, after performing the quantitative goodwill impairment test, we determine that
goodwiil is impaired, we record the amount of goodwili impairment as the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its
fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill.

Goodwill of $1,602 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019 relates to the 2016 acquisitions of IEnova Pipelines and Ventika wind
power generation facilities at Sempra Mexico.

Other Intangible Assets
Other Intangible Assets included on the Sempra Energy Consolidated Balance Sheets ate as follows:

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Doltars in millions)

Amortization period December 31,

(years) 2020 2019

Renewable energy transmission and consumption permit 19 $ 154 § 154
O&M agreement 23 66 66
Other 10 vears to indefinite 30 30
250 250

Less accumulated amortization:
Renewable energy transmission and consumption permit (32) (24)
O&M agreement (9) (6)
Other (7) (7)
(48) (37)

$ 202 8 213

Other Intangible Assets at December 31, 2020 primarily includes:

* arenewable energy transmission and consumption permit previously granted by the CRE that was acquired in connection with
the acquisition of the Ventika wind power generation facilities; and

+ afavorable O&M agreement acquired in connection with the acquisition of DEN.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Amortization expense for intangible
assets in 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $11 million, $11 million and $16 million, respectively, We estimate the amortization expense
for the next five years to be $12 million per year.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We test long-lived assets for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances have occurred that may affect the
recoverability or the estimated useful lives of long-lived assets. Long-lived assets include intangible assets subject to
amortization, but do not include investments in unconsolidated entities. A long-lived asset may be impaired when the estimated
future undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset. If that comparison indicates that the asset’s carrying
vaiue may not be recoverabie, the impairment is measured based on the difference between the cartying amount and the fair vaiue
of the asset. This evaluation is performed at the lowest level for which separately identifiable cash flows exist.

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES
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is based on qualitative and quantitative analyses, which assess:

* the purpose and design of the VIE;

* the nature of the VIE’s risks and the risks we absorb;

* the power to direct activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the VIE; and
* the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could be significant to the VIE.

We will continue to evaluate our VIEs for any changes that may impact our determination of whether an entity is a VIE and if we
are the primary beneficiary.

SDG&E

SDG&E’s power procurement is subject to reliability requirements that may require SDG&E to enter into various PPAs that
include variable interests. SDG&E evaluates the respective entitics to determine if variable interests exist and, based on the
qualitative and quantitative analyses described above, if SDG&E, and thereby Sempra Energy, is the primary beneficiary.

SDG&E has agreements under which it purchases power generated by facilities for which it supplies all of the natural gas to fuel
the power plant (i.e., tolling agreements). SDG&E’s obligation to absorb natural gas costs may be a significant variable interest.
In addition, SDG&E has the power to direct the dispatch of electricity generated by these facilities. Based on our analysis, the
ability to direct the dispatch of electricity may have the most significant impact on the economic performance of the entity
owning the generating facility because of the associated exposure to the cost of natural gas, which fueis the plants, and the vaiue
of electricity produced. To the extent that SDG&E (1) is obligated to purchase and provide fuel to operate the facility, (2) has the
power to direct the dispatch, and (3) purchases all of the output from the facility for a substantial portion of the facility’s useful
life, SDG&E may be the primary beneficiary of the entity owning the generating facility. SDG&E determines if it is the primary
beneficiary in these cases based on a qualitative approach in which it considers the operational characteristics of the facility,
including its expected power generation output relative to its capacity to generate and the financial structure of the entity, among
other factors. If SDG&E determines that it is the primary beneficiary, SDG&E and Sempra Energy consolidate the entity that
owns the facility as a VIE.

In addition to tolling agreements, other variable interests involve various elements of fuel and power costs, and other components
of cash flows expected to be paid to or received by our counterparties. In most of these cases, the expectation of variability is not
substantial, and SDG&E generally does not have the power to direct activities, including the operation and maintenance activitics
of the generating facility, that most significantly impact the economic performance of the other VIEs. If our ongoing evaluation of
these VIEs were to conclude that SDG&E becomes the primary beneficiary and consolidation by SDG&E becomes necessary, the
effects could be significant to the financial position and liguidity of SDG&E and Sempra Energy.

SDG&E determined that none of its PPAs and tolling agreements resulted in SDG&E being the primary beneficiary of a VIE at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. PPAs and tolling agreements that relate to SDG&E’s involvement with VIEs are primarily
accounted for as finance leases. I'he carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities under these contracts are inciuded in PP&E and
finance lease liabilities with balances of $1,237 million and $1,255 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. SDG&E
recovers costs incurred on PPAs, tolling agreements and other variable interests through CPUC-approved long-term power
procurement plans. SDG&E has no residual interest in the respective entities and has not provided or guaranteed any debt or
cquity support, liquidity arrangements, performance guaranices or other commitments associated with these contracts other than
the purchase commitments described in Note 16. As a result, SDG&E’s potential exposure to loss from its variable interest in
these VIEs is not significant.
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Through October 3, 2019, SDG&E had a tolling agreement to purchase power generated at OMEC a 603 MW g genera m;., facility
owned by OMEC LLC, which is a VIE that we refer to as Otay Mesa VIE. SDG&E determined that it was the primary beneficiary
of Otay Mesa VIE, and therefore, SDG&E and Sempra Energy consolidated Otay Mesa VIE. On August 23, 2019, SDG&E and
OMEC LLC executed an amended resource adequacy capacity agreement that resulted in SDG&E and Sempra Energy
deconsolidating Otay Mesa VIE. No gain or loss was recognized upon deconsolidation.

Sempra Texas Utilities

Our 100% interest in Oncor Holdings is a VIE that owns an 80.25% interest in Oncor. Sempra Energy is not the primary
beneficiary of the VIE because of the structural and operational ring-fencing and governance measures in place that prevent us
from having the power to direct the significant activities of Oncor Holdings. As a result, we do not consolidate Oncor Holdings
and instead account for our ownership interest as an equity method investment. See Notes 5 and 6 for additional information
about our equity method investment in Oncor Holdings and restrictions on our ability to influence its activities. Our maximum
exposure to loss, which fluctuates over time, from our interest in Oncor Holdings does not exceed the carrying value of our
investment, which was $12,440 million and $11,519 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Sempra Mexico

Sempra Mexico’s businesses also enter into arrangements that could include variable interests. We evaluate these arrangements
and applicable entities based on the qualitative and quantitative analyses described above. Certain of these entities are service or
project companies that are VIEs because the total equity at risk is not sufficient for the entities to finance their activities without
additional subordinated financial support. As the primary beneficiary of these companies, we consolidate them. At December 3 1,
2019, Sempra Mexico consolidated such a VIE with assets totaling approximately $126 million, which consisted ptimarily of
PP&E and other long-term assets.

Sempro LNG

Q

Cameron LNG JV

Cameron LNG JV is a VIE principally due to contractual provisions that transfer certain risks to customers. Sempra Energy is not
the primary beneficiary of the VIE because we do not have the power to direct the most significant activities of Cameron LNG JV,
including LNG production and operation and maintenance activities at the liquefaction facility. Therefore, we account for our
investment in Cameron LNG JV under the equity method, The carrying Value of our investment including amounts recognized in
at December 31, 2019. Our maximum exposure to loss, which fluctuates over time, includes the carrymg value of our investment
and guarantees that we discuss in Note 6.

CFIN

As we discuss in Note 6, in July 2020, Sempra Energy entered into a Support Agreement for the benefit of CF IN, which is a VIE.
Since we do not have the power to direct the most significant activities of the VIE, we are not the primary beneficiary. The
conditional obligations of the Support Agreement represent a variable interest that we measure at fair value on a recurring basis
(see Note 12). Sempra Energy’s maximum exposure to loss under the terms of the Support Agreement is $979 million.

ECA LNG Phase 1

ECALNG Phase 1 is a VIE because its total equity at risk is not sufficient to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support. We expect that ECA LNG Phase 1 will require future capital contributions or other financial support to finance
the construction of the facility. Sempra Energy is the ptimary beneficiary of the VIE because we have the power to direct the
development activities related to the construction of the facility, which we consider to be the most significant activities of ECA
LNG Phase 1 during the construction phase of the project. As a resuii, we consolidate ECA LNG Phase 1. At December 31, 2020,
Sempra LNG consolidated $207 million of assets, consisting primarily of PP&E, attributable to ECA LNG Phase 1 that could be
used only to settle obligations of the VIE and that are not available to settle obligations of Sempra Energy and $49 million of
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liabilities, consisting primarily of accounts payable, attributable to ECA LNG lem\\'ﬁﬁm o
the general credit of Sempra Energy. Additionally, as we discuss in Note 7, Sempra Encrgy, IEnova and TOTAL SE have provided
guarantees for the loan facility based on their respective proportionate ownership interest in ECA LNG Phase 1.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

For tangible long-lived assets, we record AROs for the present value of liabilities of future costs expected to be incurred when
assets are retired from service, if the retirement process is legally required and if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.
We also record a liability if a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement exists and can be reasonably estimated, but
performance is conditional upon a future event. We record the estimated retirement cost over the life of the related asset by
depreciating the asset retirement cost (measured as the present value of the obligation at the time the asset is placed into service),
and accreting the obligation until the liability is settied. Our rate-reguiated entities, including the California Utilities, record
regulatory assets or liabilities as a result of the timing difference between the recognition of costs in accordance with U.S. GAAP
and costs recovered through the rate-making process.

We have recorded AROs related to various assets, including;

SDG&E and SoCalGas

= fuel and storage tanks

* natural gas transmission and distribution systems
* hazardous waste storage facilities

= asbestos-containing construction materials

SDG&E

= nuclear power facilities

= electric transmission and distribution systems
* energy storage systems

* power generation plants

SoCalGas

= underground natural gas storage facilities and wells

All Other Sempra Energy Businesses

* natural gas transportation and distribution systems
= power generation plaits

» LNG facility

= LPG terminal

The changes in AROs arc as follows:

CHANGES IN ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

(Dallars:in millions)

Sempra Energy

Consolidated SDG&E SoCalGas
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Balance as of January 1™ $ 3083 § 2972 $ 866 $ 874 $ 2177 $ 2,083

Accretion expense 127 123 39 39 86 81

Liabilities incurred 2 .2 — — — —

Deconsolidation - (2) — (2) — —

Payments (63) (46) (60) (44) (2) (2)

Revisions 140 34 31 1 107 35
Balance at December 31 $ 3289 $ 3083 $ 876 $ 866 $ 2368 $ 2177
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CONTINGENCIES

We accrue losses for the estimated impacts of various conditions, situations or circumstances involving uncertain outcomes. For
loss contingencies, we accrue the loss if an event has occurred on or before the balance sheet date and:

* information available through the date we file our financial statements indicates it is probable that a loss has been incurred,
given the likelihood of uncertain future events; and

* the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

We do not accrue contingencies that might result in gains. We continuously assess contingencies for litigation claims,
environmental remediation and other events

LEGAL FEES

Legal fees thal are associaled with a past event for which a liability has been recorded are accrued when it is probable that fees
also will be incurred and amounts are estimable.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes all changes in the equity of a business enterprise (except those resulting from investments by
owners and distributions to owners), including:

= foreign currency translation adjustments

» certain hedging activities

« changes in unamortized net actuarial gain or loss and prior service cost related to pension and other postretirement benefits
plans

= unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities

The Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) show the changes in the components of OCI, including the
amounts attributable to NCI. The following tables present the changes in AOCI by component and amounts reclassified out of
AOCI to net income, excluding amounts attributable to NCI:
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CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) BY bUl\/tFum_n.. i

Foreign Pension
currency Financial and gther accumulated qther
=E:2?:I:tﬂ|or‘?c IS posl;e:t'gment cpmprehenswe
Sempra Energy Consolidated®:
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ (420) $ (122) _§ 84) {626)
Adoption of ASU 2017-12 — (3) — (3)
OCI before reclassifications (144) 40 (52) (156)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI — 3 18 21
Net OCJ (144) 43 (34) (135)
Balance as of December 31. 2018 (664) (82) (118) (764)
Adoption of ASU 2018-02 — (25) (17) (42)
OCI before reclassifications® (43) (116) 18) M7n
Amounts reclassified from AOCI® — 8 36 44
Net OCi (43) (108) 18 {133)
Balance as of December 31. 2019 (607) (215) (117) (939)
OCI before reclassifications® (102) (163) (26) (291)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI® 645 47 38 730
Net OCI¢¥¥ 543 (116) 12 439
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ (64 $ (331} $ (105) _ $ (500)
SDG&E:
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 8y § (8)
OCl before reclassifications (6) (6)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 4 4
Net OCI (2) (2
Balance as of December 31. 2018 (10) (10)
Adobtion of ASU 2018-02 (2) (2)
OCI before reclassifications (5) (5)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 1 1
Net OCI (4) (4)
Balance as of December 31. 2019 (16) (16)
OClI before reciassifications® 4 (4
Amounts reclassified from AOCI® 10 10
Net OCI 6 6
$ (10) § (10)

SoCalGas:
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ (13) § e $ {21)
OCl| before reclassifications — 4} (1)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 1 1 2
Net OCI 1 — ]
Balance as of December 31. 2018 (12) (8) (20)
Adootion of ASU 2018-02 (2) (2) (4)
OCI before reclassifications® — (4 4
Amounts reclassified from AOCI® 1 4 5
Net OCI 1 —— 1
Balance as of December 31. 2019 (13) _{10) (23)
OCI before reclassifications® —_ 100 (10
Amounts reclassified from AOCI — 2. 2
Net OCI — (8) (8)
-Balance s5.0f December 31, 2020 s 4y § (18) § (31)

All amounts are net of income tax, if subject to tax, and exclude NCI.
@ Includes discontinued operations.

@) Pension and Other Pastretirement Benefits and Total AOCI inciude $6 million in transfers of liabilities from SDG&E fo SoCalGas and $3 million
in transfers of liabilities from SDG&E to Sempra Energy in 2020 and $4 million in transfers of liabilities from SoCalGas to Sempra Energy in

2019 related to the nonqualified pension plans.

4 Total AOCI includes $4 million of foreign currency translation adjustments and $3 miltion of financial instruments associated with purchases of
NCI, which we discuss below in “Other Noncontrolling Interests — Sempra Mexico,” and which does not impact the Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive income (Loss).
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RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
(Dollars in milllons)

Details about accumulated Amounts reclassified from accumulated Affected line item on
other comprehensive income (loss) components other comprehensive income (loss) Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Sempra Energy Consolidated:
Income from Discontinued Operations,

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 645 $ — $ -— Net of Income Tax
Financial instruments:
Interest rate instruments $ — $ 10 $ 9  (Loss) Gain on Sale of Assets
Interest rate instrumentst" 10 3 1 Interest Expense
Interest rate instruments 46 3 9 Equity Eamings
Foreign exchange instruments (4} 2 (1)  Revenues: Energy-Related Businesses
Interest rate and foreign exchange instruments 1 — (1) Interest Expense
11 9) (2) Other (Expense) Income, Net
Foreign exchange instruments — 2 {2) _ Equity Earnings
Total before income tax 67 1 13
(19) (2) (4) _ Income Tax (Expense) Benefit
Net of income tax 48 9 9
(1) 1) (6)  Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests
$ 47 $ 8 B 3
Pansinn and nthar nnstratiramant hanefita(®-
Amortization of actuarial loss $ 8 $ 12 3 11 Other (Expense) Income, Net
Income from Discontinued Operations,
Amortization of actuarial loss 6 1 Net of Income Tax
Amortization of prior service cost 4 3 2 Other (Expense) Income, Net
Settlement charges 22 28 12 _ Other (Expense) Income, Net
Total before income tax 40 44 26
Income from Discontinued Operations,
3] = — Net of Income Tax
(9) (12) (8) _ Income Tax (Expense) Benefit
Net of income tax $ 29 8§ 32 % 18
i i tax % 731 $ 40 3 El
SDG&E:
Financial instruments:
Interest rate instruments!" $ - $ 3 $ 7  Interest Expense
— (3) (7)__ Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest
$ — — & =
Pensginn and anther nostratireament henafita(@-
Amortization of actuarial loss $ 1 $ — $ 1 Other Income, Net
Amortization of prior service cost 1 1 -— Other Income, Net
Settlement charges — — 4  Other Income, Net
Total before income tax 2 1 5
(1) — {1)  income Tax Expense
Net of income tax $ 1 $ 1 3 4
$ 1 $ 1 $ 4
SoCalGas:
Financial instruments:
Interest rate instruments B — 5 1 $ 1 Interest Expense
Pension and athar nnstretirement henefita@-
Amortization of actuarial loss $ 1 $ 1 $ —  Other (Expense) Income, Net
Amortization of prior service cost 1 — 1 Other (Expense) Income, Net
Total before income tax 2 1 1
— (1) — income Tax Expense
Net of income tax $ 2§ = 8 1
Jotalreclassifications for the neriod netoftax S 28 13 2

M Amounts in 2019 and 2018 include Otay Mesa VIE. All of SDG&E’s interest rate derivative activity relates to Otay Mesa VIE.

@ Amounts are included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost (see ‘Net Periodic Benefit Cost’ in Note 9).
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Ownership interests in a consolidated entity that are held by unconsolidated owners are accounted for and reported as NCI.

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

SoCalGas Preferred Stock
The preferred stock at SoCalGas is presented at Sempra Energy as NCL Sempra Energy records charges against income related to

NCI for preferred dividends declared by SoCalGas. We provide additional information regarding SoCalGas’ preferred stock in
Note 13.

Other Noncontrolling Interests

SDG&E

As we discuss in “Variable Interest Entitics” above, in August 2019, SDG&E and Scmpra Encrgy deconsolidated Otay Mcsa VIE
after SDG&E determined that it was no longer the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

Sempra Mexico

On December 2, 2020, we announced a non-binding offer to acquire up to 100% of the publicly held shares of [Enova in
exchange for shares of our common stock at an exchange ratio of 0.0313 shares of our common stock for each one IEnova
ordinary share. This exchange ratio is non-binding and remains subject to approval by Sempra Energy’s board of directors. We
expect to complete this transaction in the second quarter of 2021, subject to authorization by the SEC, CNBV and Mexican Stock
Exchange and other closing conditions.

In the first quarter of 2020, IEnova purchased additional shares in ICM Ventures Holdings B. V. for $9 million, increasing its
ownership interest from 53.7% to 82.5%. ICM Ventures Holdings B. V. owns ceriain permits and land where IEnova is building
terminals for the receipt, storage and delivery of liquid fuels.

In 2020, IEnova repurchased 77,122,780 shares of its outstanding common stock held by NCI for approximately $231 million,
resulting in an increase in Sempra Energy’s ownership interest in TEnova from 66.6% to 70.2%.

In 2019, IEnova repurchased 2,620,000 shares of its outstanding common stock held by NCI for approximately $10 million,
resulting in an increase in Sempra Energy’s ownership interest in IEnova from 66.5% to 66.6%.

Sempra LNG
In December 2020, an affiliate of TOTAL SE acquired a 16.6% ownership interest in ECA LNG Phase 1, with Sempra LNG and

IEnova each retaining a 41.7% ownership interest. Sempra LNG consolidates ECA LNG Phase 1 and Sempra Energy’s NCI in
IEnova’s 41.7% ownership interest is reported at Sempra LNG.

In March 2020, Sempra LNG purchased for $7 million the 24.6% minority interest in Liberty Gas Storage LLC, which owns
100% of LA Storage, LLC, increasing Sempra LNG’s ownership in Liberty Gas Storage LLC to 100%. Prior to the purchase, the
minority partner converted $22 million in notes payable due from Sempra LNG to equity. As a result of the purchase, we recorded
an increase in Sempra Energy’s shareholders’ equity of $2 million for the difference between the carrying value and fair value

related to fhn chanoe in nuamerchin
eiaca tIC Cnange 1n ownersnip.

In February 2019, Sempra LNG purchased for $20 million the 9.1% minority interest in Bay Gas immediately prior to the sale of
100% of Bay Gas.

Sempra Renewables

As we discuss in Note 5, in April 2019, Sempra Renewables sold its remaining wind assets and investments, which included its
wind tax equity arrangements. The remaining interest in PXiSE Energy Solutions, LLC was subsumed into Parent and other.

F-54



W-MJ_-

Discontinued Operations “ﬁ FQ !S““I F R ‘13 ! I

As we discuss in Note 5, we completed the sales of our equity interests in our Peruvian and Chilean busmesses in the second
quarter of 2020. The minority interests in Luz del Sur and Tecsur were deconsolidated upon sale of our Peruvian businesses in
April 2020, and the minority interests in the Chilquinta Energia subsidiaries were deconsolidated upon sale of our Chilean
businesses in June 2020.

The following table provides information about NCI held by others in subsidiaries or entities consolidated by us and recorded in
Other Noncontrolling Interests in Total Equity on Sempra Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

'OTHER NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Leollars in millions)

Percent ownership held by Equity (deficit) held by
noncontroliing interests noncontrolling interests
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Sempra Mexico:
IEnova 298 % 334 % $ 1487 % 1,608
IEnova subsidiaries(" 17.5 10.0-46.3 7 15
Sempra LNG:
Liberty Gas Storage, LLC — 24.6 — (13)
ECA LNG Phase 1 29.0 16.7 48 12
Parent and other:
PXiSE Energy Solutions, LLC 20.0 20.0 1 1
Discontinued Operations:
Chilquinta Energia subsidiaries™ — 19.7-43.4 — 23
Luz del Sur — 16.4 — 205
Tecsur — 9.8 — o)
—Jotal Sempra Energy $ 1541 § 1.856

™ IEnova and Chilquinta Energia have subsidiaries with NC{ held by others. Percentage range reflects the highest and lowest ownership
percentages among these subsidiaries.

REVENUES

See Note 3 for a description of significant accounting policies for revenues.

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Operation and Maintenance includes O&M and general and administrative costs, consisting primarily of personnel costs,
purchased materials and setvices, insurance, rent and litigation expense (except for litigation expense included in Aliso Canyon
Litigation and Regulatory Matters).

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION AND TRANSACTIONS

Our natural gas distribution utility in Mexico, Ecogas, and the majority of our former operations in South America (until our sale
of these operations in the second quarter of 2020) use their local currency as their functional currency. The assets and liabilities of
their foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates at the end of the reporting period, and revenues
and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the year. The resulting noncash translation adjustments do not enter into
the caicuiation of earnings or retained earings, bui are refiected in OCI and in AOCL

Cash flows of these consolidated foreign subsidiarics are translated into U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the period.
We report the effect of exchange rate changes on cash balances held in foreign currencies in Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash on the Sempra Energy Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Foreign currency transaction (losses) gains in a currency other than Sempra Mexico’s functional currency were $(25) million, $21
million and $(6) million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in Other Income,
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Net, on the Sempra Energy Consolidated Statements of Operations. Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) in a currency other
than the functional currencies of our operations in South America are included in discontinued operations.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES E J 1 E ﬁ S E iﬁ p E |

We summarize amounts due from and to unconsolidated affiliates at Sempm Energy Consolidated, SDG&E and SoCalGas in the
following table.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

(Bollars in millions)

December 31,
2020 2019
Sempra Energy Consolidated:
Total due from various unconsolidated affiliates — current $ 20 % 32
Sempra Mexico™:
ESJ — Note due December 31, 2022, net of negligible allowance for credit losses at December 31,
20202 $ 85 % —
IMG JV — Note due March 15, 2022, net of allowance for credit losses of $3 at December 31,
2020@ 695 742
Total due from unconsolidated affiliates — noncurrent $ 780 % 742
Sempra Mexico — TAG Pipelines Norte, S. de R.L. de C.V. — Note due December 20, 2021()@ $ 41 $ -
Various affiliates (4) (5)
Total due to unconsolidated affiliates — current $ (45) % (5)
Sempra Mexico;
TAG Pipelines Norte, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Note due December 20, 2021@ $ -  $ (39)
5.5% Note due January 9, 2024©® (68) -
TAG JV - 5.74% Note due December 17, 2029® (166) (156)
—Total due to unconsolidated affiliates — noncurrent $ (234) _ $ (195)
SDG&E:
Sempra Energy $ (38 $ (37)
SoCalGas (21) {(10)
Various affiliates (5) (6)
Total due to unconsoiidated affiliates — current $ 64) 9% (63)
Income taxes due from Sempra Energy® $ — 3 130
SoCalGas:

SDG&E $ 21 $ 10
Various affiliates 1 1
Total due from unconsolidated affiliates — current $ 22 11
Sempra Energy $ (31) $ {(45)
Various affiliates — (2)
Total due to unconsolidated affiliates — current $ (31) % (47)

ncome taxes due (to) from Sempra Energy® 3 (37) % 152

Amounts include principal balances plus accumulated interest outstanding.
) U.S. dollar-denominated loan at a variable interest rate based on 1-month LIBOR plus 196 bps (2.11% at December 31, 2020). At
December 31, 2020, $1 million of accrued interest receivable is included in Due from Unconsolidated Affiliates — Current.

& Mexican peso-denominated revolving line of credit for up to 14.2 billion Mexican pesos or approximately $712 million U.S. dollar-equivalent, at
a variable interest rate based on the 91-day Interbank Equilibrium Interest Rate plus 220 bps (6.66% at December 31, 2020), fo finance
construction of the natural gas marine pipeline. At December 31, 2020, $2 million of accrued interest receivable is included in Due from
Unconsolidated Affiliates — Current.

@ U.S. dollar-denominated loan at a variable interest rate based on 6-month LIBOR plus 290 bps (3.16% at December 31, 2020).
®  U.S. dollar-denominated loan at a fixed interest rate.

®  SDG&E and SoCalGas are included in the consolidated income tax return of Sempra Energy and their respective income tax expense is
computed as an amount equai to that which would result from each company having always filed a separate return.
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The following table summarizes income statement information from unconsohdated afTiliates.

INCOME STATEMENT IMPACT FROM UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Sempra Energy Consolidated

Revenue $ 37 3 52 % 64

Cost of Sales 45 50 46

Interest Income 56 74 62

Interest Expense 14 2 2
SDG&E:

Revenue $ 6 $ 6 3 5
_ Cost of Sales 79 74 73
SoCalGas:

Revenue $ 88 § 69 % 64

Cost of Sales — 8 —

California Utilities

Sempra Energy, SDG&E and SoCalGas provide certain services to each other and are charged an allocable share of the cost of
such services. Also, [rom time-{o-time, SDG&E and SoCalGas may make shori-term advances of surplus cash to Sempra Energy
at interest rates based on the federal funds effective rate plus a margin of 13 to 20 bps, depending on the loan balance.

SoCalGas provides natural gas transportation and storage services for SDG&E and charges SDG&E for such services monthly.
SoCalGas records revenues and SDG&E records a corresponding amount to cost of sales.

SDG&E and SoCalGas charge one another, as well as other Sempra Energy affiliates, for shared asset depreciation. SoCalGas and
SDG&E record revenues and the affiliates record corresponding amounts to O&M.

The natural gas supply for SDG&E’s and SoCalGas’ core na(ural £as customers is purchased by SoCalGas as a combined
procurement portfolio managed by SoCalGas. Core customers are pﬁ'marily,residential and small commercial and industrial
customers. This core gas procurement function is considered a shared service; therefore, revenues and costs related to SDG&E are
presented net in SoCalGas’ Statements of Operations.

SDG&E has a 20-year contract for up to 155 MW of renewable power supplied from the ESJ wind power generation facility. ESJ
is a 50% owned and unconsolidated TV of Sempra Mexico.

Sempra Mexico

Sempra Mexico, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, DEN and IEnova Pipelines, provides operating and maintenance services
to TAG Pipelines Norte, S. de. R.L. de C. V., and also provides personnel under an administrative services arrangement to TAG
Pipelines Norte, S. de. R.L. de C.V. and TAG JV.

Sempra LNG

Sempra LNG provides certain business services to Cameron LNG JV. Sempra LNG had an agreement to provide transportation
services to Cameron LNG JV for capacity on the Cameron Interstate Pipeline throngh August 2020, when Cameron LNG JV
achieved commercial operations of Train 3 of its Phase 1 project. Sempra Energy has provided guarantees to Cameron LNG JV
and to CFIN, as we discuss in Note 6.

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Sempra Energy Consolidated
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As we discuss below, the California Utilities and certain other Sempra Energy subsiélliari&::'s hidve ?E’é'brii:[f&:fs on the-aount of
funds that can be transferred to Sempra Energy by dividend, advance or loan as a result of conditions imposed by various
regulators. Additionally, certain other Sempra Energy subsidiaries are subject to various financial and other covenants and other
restrictions contained in debt and credit agreements (described in Note 7) and in other agreements that limit the amount of funds
that can be iransferred to Sempra Energy. At December 31, 2020, Sempra Energy was in compliance with all covenants reiaied to
its debt agreements,

At December 31, 2020, the amount of restricted net assets of consolidated entities of Sempra Energy, including the California
Utilities discussed below, that may not be distributed to Sempra Energy in the form of a loan or dividend is $12.2 billion.
Additionally, the amount of restricted net assets of our unconsolidated entities is $12.6 billion. Although the restrictions cap the
amount of funding that the various operating subsidiaries can provide to Sempra Energy, we do not believe these restrictions will

have a significant impact on cur ability to access cash to pay dividends and fund cperating needs.

As we discuss in Note 6, $1.1 billion of Sempra Energy’s consolidated retained earnings represents undistributed earnings of
equity method investments at December 31, 2020.

California Utilities
The CPUC’s regulation of the California Utilities’ capital structures limits the amounts available for dividends and loans to

Sempra Energy. At December 31, 2020, Sempra Energy could have received combined loans and dividends of approximately
$717 million from SDG&E and approximatcly $148 million from SoCalGas.

The payment and amount of future dividends by SDG&E and SoCalGas are at the discretion of their respective boards of
directors. The following restrictions limit the amount of retained earnings that may be paid as common stock dividends or loaned
to Sempra Energy from either utility:

* The CPUC requires that SDG&E’s and SoCalGas’ common equity ratios be no lower than one percentage point below the
CPUC-authorized percentage of each entity’s authorized capital structure. The authorized percentage at December 31, 2020 is
52% at both SDG&E and SoCaiGas.

* SDG&E and SoCalGas each have a revolving credit line that requires it to maintain a ratio of consolidated indebtedness to
consolidated capitalization (as defined in the agreements) of no more than 65%, as we discuss in Note 7.

Based on these restrictions, at December 31, 2020, SDG&E’s restricted net assets were $7.0 billion and SoCalGas’ restricted net
assets were $5.0 billion, which could not be transfetred to Sempra Energy.

Semipra Texas Utilities

Sempra Energy owns an indirect, 100% interest in Oncor Holdings, which owns an 80.25% interest in Oncor. As we discuss in
Note 6, we account for our investment in Oncor Holdings under the equity method. Significant restrictions at Oncor that limit the
amount that may be paid as dividends to Sempra Energy include:

* In connection with ring-fencing measures, governance mechanisms and commitments, Oncor may not pay any dividends or
make any other distributions (except for contractual tax payments) if a majority of its independent directors or a minority
member director determines that it is in the best interests of Oncor to retain such amounts to meet expected future requirements.

* Oncor must remain in compliance with its debt-to-equity ratio established by the PUCT for ratemaking purposes and may not
pay dividends or other distributions (except for contractual tax payments) if that payment would cause it to exceed its PUCT
authorized debt-to-equity ratio. Oncor’s authorized regulatory capital structure is 57.5% debt to 42.5% equity at December 31,
2020.

* If the credit rating on Oncor’s senior secured debt by any of the three major credit rating agencies falls below BBB (or the
equivalent), Oncor will suspend dividends and other distributions (except for contractual tax payments), unless otherwise
allowed by the PUCT. At December 31, 2020, all of Oncor’s senior secured ratings were above BBB.

* Oncor’s revolving credit line and certain of its other debt agreements require it to maintain a consolidated senior debt-to-
capitalization ratio of no more than 65% and observe certain affirmative covenants. At December 3 1, 2020, Oncor was in
compliance with these covenants.
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Based on these restrictions. at December 31, 2020, Oncor’s restricted net assets were $11°9 DITON WET CoTTh
to Sempra Energy.

Sempra Energy owns an indirect, 50% interest in Sharyland Holdings, which owns a 100% interest in Sharyland Utilities.
Significant restrictions related to this equity method investment include:

* Sharyland Utilities may not pay dividends or make other distributions (except for contractual payments) withou! the consent of
the JV partner.

= Sharyland Utilities must remain in compliance with the capital structure established by the PUCT for ratemaking purposes and

may not pay dividends or other distributions (except for contractual tax payments) if that payment would cause its debt to
exceed 55% of its capital structure.

* Sharyland Utilities has a revolving credit line and a term loan credit agreement that require it to maintain a consolidated debt-
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to-capitalization ratio of no more than 76% and observe certain customary repoiting requiremenis and other affimmative
covenants. At December 31, 2020, Sharyland Utilities was in compliance with these and all other covenants.

Based on these restrictions, at December 31, 2020, Sharyland Utilities’ restricted net assets were $114 million, which could not be
transferred to its owners.

Sempra Mexico

Significant restrictions at Sempra Mexico include:

praie 2VILNA

* Mexico requires domestic corporations to maintain minimum legal reserves as a percentage of capital stock, resulting in
restricted net assets of $185 million at Sempra Energy’s consolidated Mexican subsidiaries at December 31, 2020.

* Wholly owned [Enova Pipelines has a long-term debt agreement that requires it to maintain a reserve account to pay the
projects” debt. Under this restriction, net assets totaling $12 million are restricted at December 3 1, 2020.

* Wholly owned Ventika has long-term debt agreements that require it to maintain reserve accounts to pay the projects’ debt. The
debt agreements may limit the project companies’ ability to incur liens, incur additional indebtedness, make investments, pay
cash dividends and undertake certaii additional actions. Under these restrictions, net asscts totaling $9 million are restricted at
December 31, 2020.

* ESJ, a 50% owned and unconsolidated JV of Sempra Mexico, has long-term debt agreements that require the establishment and
funding of project and reserve accounts to which the proceeds of loans, letter of credit borrowings, proiect revenues and other
amounts are deposited and applied in accordance with (he debl agreements. The long-term debl agreements also limit the JV’s
ability to incur liens, incur additional indebtedness, make acquisitions and undertake certain actions. Under these restrictions,
net assets totaling $7 million are restricted at December 31, 2020,

< TAG JV, a 50% owned and unconsolidated JV of Seimpia Mexico, has a long-term debt agicement that equires it to maiitain a
reserve account to pay the projects’ debt. Under these restrictions, net assets totaling $73 million are restricted at December 31,
2020,

Sempra LNG

Sempra LNG has an equity method investment in Cameron LNG JV, which has debt agreements that require the establishment
and funding of project accounts to which the proceeds of loans, project revenues and other amounts are deposited and applied in
accordance with the debt agreements. The debt agreements require the JV to maintain reserve accounts in order to pay the project
debt service, and also contain restrictions related to the payment of dividends and other distributions to the members of the JV. We
discuss Cameron LNG JV’s debt agreements and the associated Sempra Energy guarantees in Note 6. Under these restrictions, net
assets of Cameron LNG JV of approximately $452 million are restricted at December 31, 2020.
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Other (Expense) Income, Net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations Eﬁnsnsls of the follow ng:

OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, NET

(Dollars in millions)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Sempra Enerqv Consolidated:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction $ 128  $ 94 $ 98
Investment gains (losses)™ 41 61 (6)
(Losses) gains on interest rate and foreign exchange instruments, net (67) 34 7
Foreian currency transaction (losses) gains, net®@ (25) 21 (6)
Non-service component of net periodic benefit cost (102) (132) (35)
Fine related to Energy Efficiency Program Inquiry (6) — -—
Penalties related to billing practices Oll — (8) —
Interest on requlatory balancing accounts, net 14 14 2
Sundry, net (31) (7) (2)

Total $ (48) $ 7.3 58
SDG&E:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction $ 79 $ 56 $ 61
Non-service component of net periodic benefit cost (20) (20) (6)
Fine related to Eneray Efficiency Program Inquiry (6) — —
Interest on requlatory balancing accounts, net 9 13 4
Sundry, net (10) (10) (3)

Jotal 3 52§ 39 % 56
SoCalGas:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction - $ 41 $ 34 % 36
Non-service component of net periodic benefit cost (54) (72) (10)
Penalties related to billing practices Oll — (8) —
Interest on regulatory balancing accounts, net 5 1 (2)
Sundry, net (20) (10) (9)

Total $ (28) % (65) % 15

™ Represents investment gains (losses) on dedicated assets in support of our executive retirement and deferred compensation plans. These
amounts are offset by corresponding changes in compensation expense related to the plans, recorded in O&M on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

@ Includes losses of $42 million in 2020, gains of $30 million in 2019 and losses of $3 million in 2018 from translation to U.S. dollars of a
Mexican peso-denominated loan to IMG JV, which are offset by corresponding amounts included in Equity Earnings on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

NOTE 2. NEWACCOUNTING STANDARDS

We describe below recent accounting pronouncements that have had or may have a significant effect on our financial condition,
results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

ASU 2016-13, “Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments”: ASU 20 16-13, as amended by subsequently issued
ASUs, changes how entities measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments, The standard introduces
an “expected credit loss” impairment model that requires immediate recognition of estimated credit losses expected to occur over
the remaining life of most financial assets measured at amortized cost, including trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
commitments and financiai guarantees. ASU 2016-13 aiso requires use of an aliowance to record estimated credit iosses on
available-for-sale debt securities and expands disclosure requirements regarding an entity’s assumptions, models and methods for
estimating the credit losses. We adopted the standard on January 1, 2020 using a modified retrospective approach through a
cumulative-cffect adjusiment to retained eamings. The adoption primarily impacted the expected credit losses associated with
accounts receivable balances, amounts due from unconsolidated affiliates and off-balance sheet financial guarantees. There was
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an insignificant impact to SDG&E’s and SoCalGas’ balance sheets from adoption, The following table shows the initial
(decreases) increases on Sempra Energy s balance sheet at January 1, 2020 from adoption of ASU 2016-13.
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IMPACT FROM ADOPTION OF ASU 2016-13
(Dollars In millions)

Sempra Energy
Consolidated

Accounts receivable — trade, net $ (1)
Due from unconsolidated affiliates ~ noncurrent (6)
Deferred income tax assets 4
Other current liabilities 4
Deferred credits and other 2
Retained earnings (7)
Other noncontrolling interests (2)

ASU 2017-04, “Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment”: ASU 2017-04 removes the second step of the goodwill
impairment test, which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. An entity will be required to apply a one-step
quantitative test and record the amount of goodwill impairment as the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair
value, not Lo exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. We adopted ASU 2017-04 on January 1, 2020 and are applying the standard
on a prospective basis to our goodwill impairment tests.

ASU 2020-04, “Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting”: ASU 2020-04 provides optional
expedients and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to contract modifications that replace LIBOR or another reference rate
affected by reference rate reform and to hedging relationships that reference LIBOR or another reference rate affected or expected
to be atfected by reference rate reform. ASU 2020-04 was effective March 12, 2020 and can be applied through December 31,
2022, with certain exceptions for hedging relationships that continue to exist after this date, and may be applied from January 1,
2020. For contract modifications, the standard allows entities to account for modifications as an event that does not require
reassessment or remeasurement (i.e., as a continuation of ihe existing coniract): The standard also ailows entities to amend their
formal designation and documentation of hedging relationships affected or expected to be affected by reference rate reform,
without having to de-designate the hedging relationship. Entities may elect the optional expedients and exceptions on an
individual hedging relationship basis and independently from one another. We elected the optional expedients for contract
modifications. We elected the cash flow hedging expedients to disregard the potential discontinuation of a reference rate when
assessing whether a hedged forecasted interest payment is probable and to disregard certain mismatches between the designated
hedging instrument and the hedged item when assessing the hedge effectiveness. We are applying these expedients prospectively
from January 1, 2020. Application of these expedients preserves the presentation of derivatives consistent with the past
presentation.

ASU 2020-06, “Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity”: ASU 2020-06 simplifies
the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity, including convertible instruments and
contracts on an cutity’s own cquity. In addition to othcr changcs, this standard amcnds ASC 470-20, “Debt with Conversion and
Other Options,” by removing the accounting models for instruments with beneficial conversion features and cash conversion
features. The standard also amends ASC 260, “Eamings Per Share,” as follows:

* requires an entity to apply the if-converted method when calculating diluted EPS for convertible instruments and no longer use
the treasury stock method, which was previously allowed for certain convertible instruments;

* requires an entity to inciude the effect of potential share settiement in the diluted EPS caiculation when an instrument may be
settled in cash or shares, and no longer allows an entity to rebut the presumption of share settlement if it has a history or policy
of cash settlement;

* requires an entity to include equity-classified convertible preferred stock that contains down-round features whereby, if the
down-round feature is triggered, its effect is treated as a dividend and as a reduction of income available to common
shareholders in basic EPS;

« clarifies that the average market price should be used to calculate the diluted EPS denominator when the exercise price or the
number of shares that may be issued is variable, except for certain contingently issuable shares; and

* clarifies that the weighted-average share count from each quarter should be used when calculating the year-to-date weighted-
average share count.
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For public entities, ASU 2020-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods
therein, with early adoption permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. An entity can use either a full or
modified retrospective approach to adopt ASU 2020-06 and must disclose, in the period of adoption, EPS transition information
about the effect of the change on affected per-share amounts. We plan to adopt the standard on January 1, 2022 and are currently
evaluating the effect of the standard on our ongoing financial reporting.
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NOTE 3. REVENUES

The following table disaggregates our revenues from contracts with customers by major service line and market and provides a

reconciliation to total revenues by segment. The majority of our revenue is recognized over time.

DISAGGREGATED REVENUES

(Bollars-tn-millions)

Consolidating

adjustments Sempra
Sempra Sempra Sempra and Parent Ene!'gy
SDG&E SoCalGas Mexico LNG Renewables sl pibr Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2020
By major service line:
Utilities 4,920 $ 457 $ 58 $ - —_ (94) 9,455
Energy-related businesses — — 834 92 — (71) 855
Revenues from contracts with customers 4920 $§ 4571 $ 892 §$ 92 — (165) 10,310
Bv market:
Gas 692 $ 457 $ 603 $ 86 — (156) 5,796
Electric 4,228 — 289 6 — (9) 4514
Revenues from contracts with customers 4820 3 4571 $ 892 § 92 — (165) 10,310
Revenues from contracts with customers 4,920 $ 4571 $ 892 $ 92 — (165) 10,310
Utilities regutatory revenues 393 177 — — — — 570
Other revenues — — 364 282 - (156) 490
Total revenues 5313 $ 4748 $ 1,256 $ 374 - (321) 11,370
Year ended December 31, 2019
By major service line:
Utilities 4,819 $ 4367 $ 73 $ — —_ (75) 9,184
Energy-related businesses — - 919 176 5 (143) 957
Revenues from contracts with customers 4819 § 4367 $ 992 §$ 176 5 (218) 10,141
Bv market:
Gas 587 $ 4367 $ 680 $ 170 - (208) 5,596
Electric 4,232 — 312 6 5 (10) 4,545
Revenues from contracts with customers 4819 $ 4367 $ 992 § 176 S (218) 10,141
Revenues from contracts with customers 4819 $ 4367 $ 992 $ 176 5 (218) 10,141
Utilities regulatory revenues 106 158 —_ — — — 264
Other revenues — - 383 234 5 (198) 424
Total revenues 4825 § 4525 $ 1375 $ 410 10 (416) 10,829
Year ended December 31, 2018
By major service line:
Utilities 4788 ST 3 78 $ — — (69) 8,374
Energy-related businesses = — 941 232 46 (146) 1,073
Revenues from contracts with customers 4788 $ 3577 $ 1019 $ 232 46 (215) 9,447
Bv market:
Gas 491 $ 3577 $ 711 $ 224 — (203) 4,800
Electric 4,297 — 308 8 46 (12) 4,647
Revenues from contracts with customers 4788 $ 3577 $ 1019 $ 232 46 (215) 9,447
Revenues from contracts with customers 4,788 $ 3,577 $ 1,019 $ 232 46 (215) 9,447
Utilities regulatory revenues (220) 385 — — — — 165
Other revenues —- — 357 240 78 (185) 490
Total revenues 4,568 $ 3,962 $ 1376 $ 472 124 (400) 10,102
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REVENUES FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Our revenues from contracts with customers are primarily related to the transmission, distribution and storage of natural gas and
the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity through our regulated utilities. We also provide other midstream and
renewable energy-related services. We assess our revenues on a contract-by-contract basis as well as a portfolio basis to determine
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty, if any, of revenues being recognized.

We generally recognize revenues when performance of the promised commodity service is provided to our customers and we
invoice our customers for an amount that reflects the consideration we are entitled to in exchange for those services. We consider
the delivery and transmission of natural gas and electricity and providing of natural gas storage services as ongoing and integrated
services. Generally, natural gas or electricity services are received and consumed by the customer simultaneously. Our
performance obligations related to these services are satisfied over time and represent a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customers. We recognize revenue based on units delivered,
as the satisfaction of our performance obligations can be directly measured by the amount of natural gas or electricity delivered to
the customer. In most cases, the right to consideration from the customer directly corresponds to the value transferred to the
customer and we recognize revenue in the amount that we have the right to invoice.

The payment terms in our customer contracts vary. Typically, we have an unconditional right to customer payments, which are
due after the performance obligation to the customer is satisfied. The term between invoicing and when payment is due is
typically between 10 and 90 days.

We exclude sales and usage-based taxes from fevenues. In addition, the California Utilities pay franchise fees to operate in
various municipalities. The California Utilities bill these franchise fees to their customers based on a CPUC-authorized rate.
These franchise fees, which are required to be paid regardless of the California Utilities’ ability to collect from the customer, are
accounted for on a gross basis and reflected in utilitics revenues from contracts with customers and operating expense.

Utilities Revenues
Utilities revenues represent the majority of our consolidated revenues from contracts with customers and include:
* The transmission, distribution and storage of natural gas at;
o SDG&E
o SoCalGas
o Sempra Mexico’s Ecogas
* The generation, transmission and distribution of electricity at SDG&E.

Utilities revenues are derived from and recognized upon the delivery of natural gas or electricity services to customers. Amounts
that we bill our customers are based on tariffs set by regulators within the respective state or country. For SDG&E and SoCalGas,
which follow the provisions of U.S. GAAP governing rate-regulated operations as we discuss in Note 1, amounts that we bill to
customers also include adjustments for previously recognized regulatory revenues.

The California Utilities and Ecogas recognize revenues based on regulator-approved revenue requirements, which allows the
utilities to recover their reasonable operating costs and provides the opportunity to realize their authorized rates of return on their
investments. While the California Utilities’ revenues are not affected by actual sales volumes, the pattern of their revenue
recognition during the year is affected by scasonality. SoCalGas recognizes annual authorized revenue for core natural gas
customers using seasonal factors established in the Triennial Cost Allocation Proceeding, resulting in a significant portion of
earnings being recognized in the first and fourth quarters of each year, SDG&E’s authorized revenue recognition is also impacted
by seasonal factors, resulting in higher carnings in the third quarter when electric loads are typically higher than in the other three
quarters of the year.
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SDG&E has an arrangement to provide the California ISO with the ability to cammimh!mm i ;
approved by the FERC. Revenue is recognized over time as access is provided to the California ISO.

Factors that can affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows include weather, seasonality and timing of
customer billings, which may result in unbilled revenues that can vary significantly from month to month and generally
approximate one-half month’s deliveries.

The California Utilities recognize revenues from the sale of allocated California GHG emissions allowances at quarterly auctions
administered by CARB. GHG allowances are delivered to CARB in advance of the quarterly auctions, and the California Utilities
have the right to payment when the GHG allowances are sold at auction. GHG revenue is recognized on a point in time basis
within the quarter the auction is held. The California Utilities balance costs and revenues associated with the GHG program
through regulatory balancing accounts.

In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, the California Utilities and the CPUC have implemented certain measures to assist
customers, including suspending service disconnections due to nonpayment for residential and small business customers, waiving
late payment fees for business customers, and offering flexible payment plans to customers experiencing difficulty paying their
electric or gas bills. Additional measures could be mandated or voluntarily implemented in the future. Under the regulatory
compact applicable to the California Utilities, including decoupling of rates, recovery of uncollectible expenses, and other
recovery mechanisms potentially available, which we discuss in Note 4, the California Utilitics have continued to recognize

35

revenues under ASC 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” in the year ended December 21, 2020
Energy-Related Businesses Revenues

Midstream Revenues

Midstream revenues at Sempra Mexico and Sempra LNG typically represent revenues from long-term, U.S. dollar-based contracts
with customers for the sale of natural gas and LNG, as well as storage and transportation of natural gas. Invoiced amounts are
based on the volume of natural gas delivered and contracted prices.

Sempra Mexico’s marketing operations sell natural gas to the CFE and other customers under supply agreements. Sempra Mexico
recognizes the revenue from the sale of natural gas upon transfer of the natural gas via pipelines to customers at the agreed upon
delivery points, and in the case of the CFE, at its thermoelectric power plants.

Through its marketing operations, Sempra LNG has contracts to sell natural gas and LNG to Sempra Mexico that allow Sempra
Mexico to satisfy its obligations under supply agreements with the CFE and other customers, and to supply Sempra Mexico’s
TdM power plant. Because Sempra Mexico either immediately delivers the natural gas to its customers or consumes the benefits
simultaneously (by using the gas to supply TdM), revenues from Sempra LNG’s sale of natural gas to Sempra Mexico are
generally recognized over time as delivered. Revenues from LNG sales are recognized at the point when the cargo is delivered to
Sempra Mexico.

Revenues from the sale of LNG and natural gas by Sempra LNG to Sempra Mexico are adjusted for indemnity payments and
profit sharing. We consider these adjustments to be forms of variable consideration that are associated with the sale of LNG and
natural gas to Sempra Mexico, and therefore, Sempra LNG records the related costs as an offset to revenues, with no impact to
Sempra Energy’s consolidated revenues.

We recognize storage revenue from firm capacity reservation agreements, under which we collect a fee for reserving storage
capacity for customers in our storage facilities. Under these firm agreements, customers pay a monthly fixed reservation fee based
on the storage capacity reserved rather than the actual volumes stored. For the fixed-fee component, revenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the contract. We bill customers for any capacity used in excess of the contracted capacity and
such revenues are recognized in the month of occurrence. We also recognize revenue for interruptible storage services. As we
discuss in Note 5, irt Febiuary y 2019, Sempia LNG completed the sale of its mox -utility natural gas stotage assets in the southeast

U.S. (comprised of Mississippi Hub and Bay Gas).
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We generate pipeline transportation revenues from firm agreements, under which customeng transportation
capacity. Revenue is recognized when the volumes are delivered to the customers’ agreed upon delivery point. We recognize
revenues for our stand-ready obligation to provide capacity and transportation services throughout the contractual delivery period
as the benefits are received and consumed simultaneously as customers uti